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Financial Headlines

Statutory (loss) / profit before tax

£(162)m

(2020: profit £5m)

Underlying (loss) / profit before
tax

£(36)m

(2020: profit £33m)

Net interest margin (underlying)

2.4%

(2020: 2.5%)

Bad debt asset ratio

1.1%

(2020:0.7%)

Cost : income ratio (underlying)

90%

(2020: 75%)

CET 1 Capital Ratio (transitional)

17.6%

(2020:14.1%)

Net Stable Funding Ratio

125%

(2020:110%)

Perfurmance, including reference to the above headlines is
explained in the business review and financial review sections
on pages 6 and 30.

The Alternative Performance measures have been defined and
reconciled to the statutory disclosures on page 130.




Strategic Report

The Directors present their strategic report of Sainsburg's Bank plc (‘the Bank’) for the year ended 28 February

2021.

The Bank is a public company limited by shares, registered in England and domiciled in the United Kingdom. Its
registered office is 33 Holborn, London, ECIN 2HT. Qur principal place of business is 3 Lochside Avenue, Edinburgh,

EH12 9DJ.

Business model

We provide a range of retail banking services and related financial services wholly within the UK. We provide
simple, mobile led financial services for Sainsbury’s and Argos customers.

Saving &lending,
{“D ‘savings

Loans
@ Cradit cards
a{"@m Storecards*

" Mortgages**

- Funds are raised through savings deposits
and wholesale sources. We lend these to
customers or hold them as liquid assets.

- Our net interest income is the difference
between the interest we earn on lending and
the interest we pay on funds raised.

- Our saving and lending products are sold and
serviced online or by telephone and, in the
case of Storecards, in an Argos store.

* Argos Storecards are funded by Sainsbury’s
Bank and are operated by our subsidiary;
Home Retail Group Card Services Limited.

** We no longer accept new mortgage business

| Commission baséd,

Insurance products are offered via introducer
contracts with third party insurance partners
and income is received through commission
arrangements or through a panel model for
Car and Home where we act as a broker to a
number of underwriters. All products are
available online or via telephone

Foreign currency is acquired wholesale

and sold to customers at a retail rate with
resulting margin. We earn fees on prepaid

" cards and money transfer services. We have

Travel Money Bureaux in Sainsbury’s
supermarkets and have an online presence.
Our ATMs have a physical presence in
Sainsbury’s and Argos stores.

As a bank authorised by the Prudential Regulation Authority (PRA), together with the Financial Conduct Authority
(FCA), we are required to raise and hold specified minimum levels of capital (see note 36), and hold specified levels
of liquid assets in order to meet our financial commitmenits as they are expected to fall due (see liquidity risk

disclosures at note 35).

_Our underlying profitability reflects the difference between income generated from our products compared to

costs arising from marketing and operating those products, supplier and head office related costs, charges arising
from impairment of customer balances and other realised gains and losses — these items are explained in the

financial review on page 30.
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Strategic Report
We are a wholly owned subsidiary of J Sainsbury plc, governed by our own Board and Executive Committee,
independent from J Sainsbury plc (see Risk Overview and Governance sections on pages 10 and 26).

The current financial statements continue to report the performance and position of the Bank as a standalone
entity. Further disclosure on the combined Financial Services segment of the Sainsbury’s Group (‘the Group’) is
provided in the J Sainsbury plc Group financial statements and more information on transactions with Group
Companies is provided at note 40.

Market Context
Loans

The market for unsecured personal lending was challenging for
Loans as COVID-19 had a significant impact on customers borrowing
appetite and ability to pay, in an uncertain economic environment.

To support customers, wé designed, tested and implemented our
Emergency Payment Freeze strategy to assist customers impacted
financially by COVID-19.

We took several actions to mitigate the risk exposure of the Bank,
including tightening credit criteria, reducing our marketing
presence, scaling back our market competitiveness and restricted
maximum lending to £15k. From these safeguards and lower
macroeconomic demand, New Business lending significantly
reduced. However, in the second half we began reversing these
actions and have seen a corresponding uplift in momentum.

Market leading pricing was reintroduced at the end of 2020, giving
our customers excellent value and driving good quality New
Business.

Credit Cards

Simitar to loans and the broader financial services market, the 20/21
financial year has been challenging for Cards due to the impacts of
COVID-19. As the situation regarding the pandemic evolved, the
Bank moved quickly to support existing customers in terms of
Emergency Payment Freeze capability and took necessary steps to
ensure Credit Risk policy was adopted to mitigate potential impacts
linked to the market stress.

fn the second half we saw a gradual, but strong recovery, in terms of
acquisition and existing customer performance.

Mortgages

In September 2019, we announced that we had ceased new
mortgage sales in line with our objective to reshape the balance
sheet and focus on capital efficient products with the most
connectivity to Sainsbury’s shoppers. Sainsbury’s Bank continues to
offer retention products as existing customers fixed rate deals end.

As for other lending products, we have introduced Emergency

Payment Freezes to support customers impacted by COVID-19, this
support has been extended to July 21.
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Strategic Report

Savings

Due to COVID-19 restrictions and the market wide observed
consumer spending behaviour changes, the savings market grew by
6% between January and November to £1.3tn.  Following our exit
from the Mortgage market and Base Rate reductions, we have
repriced our existing variable rate customers to manage the overall
book size to optimise liquidity. Balances have reduced from £6.3bn
in February-20 to £5.1bn in February-21, resulting in our market
share reducing from 0.5% to 0.4%., which played a key role in
stabilising our balance sheet.

Changes to Base Rate, combined with changes to consumer
behaviour as a result of lockdown restrictions have meant that the
key competitor best buy rates have dropped from 1.31% to 0.50%
and rates are expected to fall further as current market conditions
continue. In line with the market, our rates have decreased through
carefully managed repricing which has reduced the Interest Payable
whilst meeting the requirements of the wider business.

ATMs

ATM transactions have fallen 42% across the industry in 20/21 due to
the impact of COVID-19 and lockdown restrictions. Our fall in
transactions at 47% is greater than the reduction in the market and
reflects the reduction in the number of ATMs as well as the reduced
usage. Our average cash withdrawal has increased by 23% to over
£100 reflecting customers visiting supermarkets less frequently. We
have made significant cost savings through the year by right sizing
our ATM estate to reflect the new lower levels of demand for cash.

Insurances

The market has been significantly impacted by COVID-19.

The Car Insurance market has seen new car sales reduce as dealers
have been closed and consumers are working from home. This has
resulted in an increase in discounting through aggregator channels
across the market, with some brokers reducing their margins
significantly to maintain volume targets. Direct Insurers have also
seen a significant reduction in claims as the population stopped
travelling, assisting some in funding lower premiums. This made it
a very competitive trading environment for the Bank. Overall
poticies written feli 7% in the year.

The Home insurance market was adversely impacted during the first
lockdown but recovered in the second half of the financial year as
the stamp duty holiday helped house sales to recover. Despite the
challenging environment total policies written in the year increased
3%.

The Pet insurance market has been positively impacted by COVID-
19 as the increase in the population working from home has resulted
in a significant increase in demand for puppies and kittens.

Travel insurance has been impacted most significantly by the
various travel restrictions throughout the year. Our performance has
been broadly in line with the market.
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Travel Money

The entire travel market has been hugely impacted by the travel
bans imposed due to COVID-19. We were able to move over 1000
colleagues to support in Sainsbury’s supermarkets from March
2020, which both supported colleagues and reduced the impact on
our P&L. We brought a small number of colleagues back from July
to September when we opened our busiest 34 bureaux as the travel
ban was temporarily lifted. We closed them again in September
and since then they have remained closed.
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Strategic Report

Strategy
L . o OMo Brands that

The Bank is aligned to the Sainsbury’s Group strategic priority to focus on brands ,. Del'

. . : ) . N wer
that deliver with a customer and profit focus whilst supporting the core food
business. We aim to drive value for the Sainsbury’s Group by being an agile, « Customet and profit focs
capital and cost-efficient provider of simple, mobile led financial services for « Suppoing e cote foud
Sainsbury's and Argos customers. We know that when customers take out a busingss

Bank product, they become more loyal and go on to spend more in Sainsbury’s
and Argos stores.

We aim to use the power of Nectar to win customers
p Connected to Knows andd s2Ive our cusiormets
and grow more valuable market share. Customers  brttor, use the powet of Nectar

In September 2019, the Bank announced its five-year strategy, outlining its key objectives and how the strategy
will be delivered. Since the announcement, the market has changed considerably due to the impacts of COVID-19
altering the pathway of achieving our strategic goals. Our balance sheet position has reduced to mitigate against
the risks from poorer economic conditions. However, our focus continues to be to rebuild and reshape our balance
sheet in a safe and effective manner while simplifying and strengthening the organisation.

VI SIEN To be the provider of Financial Services for loyal Sainsbury’s Group customers
~ OBJECTIVE An agile, capital and cost-efficient provider of simple, mobile led financial services
Respapelthe] Strengthen Simplibyitie]
[Dalancesheet the business
« Improve margins Focus on: Build core + Rightsize the
- Develop AFS proposition - Operational competency in: cost base
- Improve card and insurance resilience - Customer - Rationalise
momentum - Conduct experience product
«  New FS model with Nectar at - Capital - Digital offerin
PRI Pt g g
the core efficiency - Dataand +  Review
- Runoff mortgage book analytics vendor/supplier
safely - Credit/ arrangements
Operational risk +  Optimise cross-
- Partnerships Group
synergies

Whilst operating within Risk Appetite

“Best-in-class” execution delivered by an outstanding and envgaged team

- FINANCIAL

~ SERVICES Customer ‘ Colleague Financial Safe and Sound
. METRICS

Our performance in the year is covered in the business review below and the financial review on page 30.
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Business Review

Reflecting the changing economic environment driven by COVID-19, the Bank has made an underlying loss in the
year. We have seen significantly reduced demand across consumer credit, and less activity in our fee-based
products, particularly Travel Money and ATMs. We have also made a significant provision in anticipation of future
credit losses, largely reflective of predictions for unemployment, partially offset by management actions on
funding and costs. In line with guidance at half year, the Bank returned to profit in the second half to deliver
underlying operating loss of £36 million for the financial year.

Despite challenges from the pandemic, we have delivered great value financial solutions and support for the
Sainsbury’s customer whilst improving our digital and operational services. We have maintained a strong Net
Promoter Score (NPS) performance for our products and remain in the top quartile for banks. We have accelerated
our digitisation journey with 70% of customers receiving paperless statements and over two thirds of our
customer base now registered for online banking, with credit cards now over 80%.

Following lower consumer demand and a tightening of credit appetite, our customer numbers have decreased
14%, with the largest reduction seen in Travel Insurance, down 64% year-on-year. Nectar continues to be integral
to our strategy and a key differentiator for Sainsbury’s Bank with over 77% of our customers holding a Nectar
card and benefiting from Nectar points and rewards across a range of products. We successfully introduced a new
Nectar Credit Card offering up to 10,000 Nectar points for customers seeking rewards on spending with our Nectar
partners. Nectar related applications are up 318% in the last quarter of FY20/21 compared to the same quarter last
year. We have expanded our marketing channels and are driving mare direct acquisition (as opposed to via price
comparison sites) with total direct sales increasing by 6% and direct digital sales increasing by 72%.

Underlying income is 32% lower, driven by a decline in market demand for borrowing products, the closure of our
Travel Money business amidst lockdown restrictions across the United Kingdom and changes in consumer
spending behaviour whilst in lockdown. This was partly offset by a significant reduction in savings rates following
the reduction in the Bank of England Base Rate and lower customer deposits.

Despite a challenging market for Insurance, with the pandemic driving very competitive market pricing, we have
remained resilient with Insurance income in line with the prior year. InCar and Home, new business demand was
down led by new car registrations and home sales, but this was offset by strong retention growth year on year.
In line with our strategic priority to improve Insurance momentum, we have invested this year in our acquisition
and servicing platforms which offers improved payment functionality, live chat for new customers and has
integrated Nectar into the customer journey. As a result, our Insurance book now holds over a quarter of a million
policies. We also taunched new Pet insurance cover and introduced multifactor authentication on our online web
portal, minimising information security risks, to provide additional protection for our customers and their pets.
fn conjunction with buoyant demand as lockdown saw increased numbers of new pet owners, this drove a 96%
increase in Pet Insurance new business volumes.

The cost agenda continues to be a key priority for the business where we aim to deliver sustainable cost savings
as we adapt to changes in the market. Successful cost initiatives delivered in the year include resizing our ATM
estate and improving the terms of some of our key supplier contracts. A large component of our costs are
colleague costs, around 29%, which have reduced 21%, partly in relation to lower Travel Money colleague costs as
staff were redeployed into the stores after Bureaux were closed from April. Colleague costs excluding Travel
Money reduced by 10% supported by management action to reduce our colleague headcount as part of our Target
Operating Model review.
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Through action taken to protect the Bank against the economic uncertainty, by tightening credit criteria for new
business early in the initial lockdown, and as a resuit of lower consumer finance demand our Loans and Credit
Card lending balances have reduced 28% and 27% respectively. Our Mortgage retention was lower than market
as we diverted investment toward COVID-19 requirements to sustain other segments of thie business. Whilst
COVID-19 has impacted our strategic aim of reshaping the balance sheet, we are now able to regrow and shape
our customer portfolio in the coming years to focus on capital efficient, Nectar-led products with the most
connectivity to Sainsbury’s shoppers.

Our approach to balance sheet management has promoted a strong capital position to absorb the losses of the
pandemic and manage liquidity. The CET1 ratio has increased 3.5% to 17.6%, with the capital released as a result
of the contraction in balances more than offsetting the loss made in the year. The LCR has increased 186% to
306% driven by a change in customer behaviour requiring less business outflows and management action to
improve the Bank’s funding capacity.

Supporting our custormers

We continued to serve our 1.8 million customers throughout the pandemic through our digital channels and
contact centres. Supporting our customers as their needs change has never been more critical.

The Bank offered payment holidays across all of its lending products to support customers who were impacted
by COVID-19. Over 40,000 payment holidays were granted at a value of £429m, 93% have returned to normal
payment schedules or fully repaid the loan after the expiry of their EPF to date. Our contact centre staff played
a critical role in managing the customer experience to ensure each case was treated on an individual basis to
ensure the right outcome was achieved.

Supporting our colleagues

Lockdown began at the beginning of the financial year requiring quick and effective action to maintain
operations and to ensure our colleagues are protected during this unprecedented time. We invested in our
colleagues by covering expenses for home office set up and made our offices COVID-19 safe with social distancing
measures. Travel Money colleagues from closed Bureaux were redeployed into Sainsbury’s supermarkets to
support our Sainsbury’s store colleagues when it was needed most.
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Our digital strategy in action

The Bank has continued to invest in digital tools as well continuing to build on our data and analytics capability.
We are making good progress with our objective of being an agile, capital and cost-efficient provider of simple,
mobile led financial services and we have seen an increase in the number of custormners using our apps to manage
their finances.

Easy ocons 13 your cradit Our Credit Card app launched in early 2019 and now has 375,000 registered users, with
card informatian Jjust under half of our active customer base now registered. The app offers a simple and

_fast way to access account information and view transactions while on the
go. Customers have been using it to check their Credit Card balance, credit limit,
available spend, and transactions. The latest version of the app went live in early 2021
providing customers with a pending transactions feature, a vaisrm
monthly summary of transactions, the ability to manage  sctuesp
direct debits and additional security designed to protect
online customers against fraud.

In addition, further functionality was added including a
credit limit indicator to allow customers to see at a glance if
they are close to their limit and Google Pay digital wallet
capability for customers wanting to use their handheld  tsstssd s,

device for purchases. These improvements have #ean b
contributed to fantastic customer feedback and have driven  vues

up our ratings on the Apple App Store from 3.6 to 4.8 out of

Azt GV

5. These changes pave the way for exciting future T”‘e e o e
developments to drive more customers onto the app. Srves Ames mem et wew

We have been investing in our Loans and Savings application journey, to speed up and streamtine the process
for customers. For many customers this will mean no more cumbersome paper trails as they can use their mobile
phones to complete our required checks. And theyi get their accounts set up quicker, and loan funds sooner due
to new pre-approval checks.

Our Car & Home Insurance digital evolution across acquisition and servicing platforms is well underway.
Customers can now pay online, see Nectar offers as part of the sales journey and they can ‘Live Chat’. Our
customers are now self-serving more than ever before, with over 60% of Car & Home Insurance customers now
requesting service changes online rather than over the phone, an increase of 103% since 2019.

In addition, our Insurance app. which launched in January 2019 for Car & Home, was amongst the first of its
kind to allow policyholders to manage their [nsurance via their smart device. Essentially, it allows customers to
make changes to their policy and to see all the information they need in one place, giving them quick and easy
access to their policies wherever and whenever they need it, and information about what to do in the event of a
claim.

Curry your o A harng aalioes with you.
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Delivering value for our shareholders

In order to maximise the shareholder value we made six commitments at our Capital Markets dag in September
2019 and have summarised the progress to date against each of them below. '

1. Stop putting cash into financial services. The Bank has received no capital from the parent this year,
and our capital ratios have grown. We have a significant capital surplus and strong liquidity and we
remain confident that Financial Services will not require capital injections from the Group

2. Improve returns. We committed to double underlying profits and reach double digit ROCE within 5 years.
We are still on track to double profit and returns in our Financial Services business within 5 years, despite
the challenges of the current environment ‘

Note this commitment is based on consolidated financial services (including Argos Financial Services)
which has a ROCE of (1.4)% (FY20: 6.3%) compared to the Bank stand-alone ROCE (3.9)% (FY20: 27%).

3. Financial services to become cash generative. We remain committed to paying dividends to our
parent within 5 years and are taking action against our priorities to enable future cash distributions to
the Group.

4. Transform the cbst base. We committed to reducing the cost to income ratio to c50% within 5 years. We
continue to take action to implement initiatives to drive income growth and reduce costs, including a
reduction in colleague headcount of 11% year on year (spot full time equivalent, 9% including
contractors).

Note this commitment is based on consolidated financial services (including Argos Financial Services)
which has a cost to income of 72% (FY20:66%) compared to the Bank stand-alone ratio of 90% (FY20:
75%).

5. Reduce risk profile to the Group. Whilst COVID-19 has delayed our strategic aim of reshaping the
balance sheet, we are now able to regrow and shape our customer portfolio in the coming years to focus
on capital efficient, Nectar-led products with the most connectivity to Sainsbury’s shoppers. We continue
to operate with sufficient capital and liquidity buffers to weather potential significant stress scenarios in
the future.

6. Focus on Sainsbury’s customer base. We are working to increase connectivity and value for the Group
and continue to work in enhanced cross group workstreams to ensure delivery of this key priority. Our
focus is to enhance our digital connectivity with the Group and to provide customers convenient and
simple access to financial services as part of their shopping experience. ‘
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Risk overview

Introduction

Effective enterprise-wide risk management is a core component of our strategy and operations. We adopt a
holistic, end-to-end view of risk, ensuring that the key risks arising from our activities are effectively identified,
assessed and controlled. Our objective is to support the strategy of the Bank by thinking broadly about risks and
managing them in an appropriate manner relative to the size and complexity of our business.

Our approach to enterprise-wide risk management includes the following key steps:

Bank < Informed
Strategy ’ Decisions
Risk Strate Risk Risk Policies Evidence of , | Resilience &
S N ‘ ) =] Reporting :
and Culture Appetite & Behaviours Control Stress Testing
Setsaclear Setsthe level of risk  Sets requirements Identifies key Ensures that risks Designs, tests and
understanding of we are willing to to support agile processes and are identified, enhances resilience

escalated and
treated effectively

and effective risk
management

to volatility under
Stress scenarios

risk and the role we accept to achieve
play in managing it  our strategic goals

manages risk with
effective controls

Risk Strategy and Culture

Our risk strategy and culture supports our business strategy and ensures it is delivered in a responsible and
sustainable manner. This sets a clear, shared understanding of the risks we face and the role each of us plays in
managing it. The following key aims and principles underpin our risk strategy and culture:

Aims | 7 Customer- [ ~ T T T T
(what) | Insightful | Focused j{ Alert ' Resilient |/ Engaged !
V;e| de'mlfan 4 [ Good customer | Weanticipate || Wefundbefore || Weunderstand |
Principles | y {| outcomesareat || markettrends, ‘i welendandwe i. thepartweplay !
P | managerisk | G , P n
(how) | . " the heartof what |1 wedon'tfollow |: control before we |, inidentifyingand |
concentrations |: ! { ying
i we do them i row I escalating risks
| Y B SR -clivate-4SNND [ ik S __J [ g e kTR g,j_k,,
Risk Appetite

Our risk appetite is set and approved annually by the Board. It provides a clear articulation of the level of risk we
are prepared to accept in order to achieve our strategic objectives. It is expressed and embedded through:

+  A‘high-level’ Risk Appetite Statement that provides a concise set of key Bank-wide targets and limits, with
a balance of current, forward-looking and stress-based metrics for financial and non-financial risks.

+ . ‘Directional’ risk appetite limits for each of the Bank’s key risk types (e.g. retail credit risk, operational risk).
These Directional limits are designed to provide early indications of changes in the operating environment
and an outlook on whether we remain on-track to meet our ‘high-level’ risk appetite targets.

Performance against both the ‘high-level’ Risk Appetite and ‘Directional’ measures are monitored and reported
to our Executive Risk Committee (ERC) on a monthly basis, and at each Board Risk Committee (BRC). Additionally,
escalation processes are embedded to notify Senior Executives and Board members of any Risk Appetite measure
operating outside of approved thresholds.

Our risk appetite enables us to make clear and transparent decisions on potential trade-offs between different

aspects of our risk profile. |n this way, strategic decisions are made in the full context of those factors likely to be
of interest to a range of stakeholders. This enables us to understand the Bank’s current and future risk profile,
how it supports our strategic objectives and how it supports the best interests of our customers and other
stakeholders.

10
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Risk Policies and Behaviours

We have identified a set of principal risk types to which we are exposed through our activities (see separate
section below). Eachrisk type is actively managed through a key risk policy and supporting policy standards that
clearly articulate the approach and boundaries by which the risks are managed and ensure everyone understands
their individual responsibilities. The policies and policy standards set out the expected behaviours and
requirements to support effective, agile and consistent decision-making across the Bank.

Evidence of Control

We adopt a process-centric approach to identifying, measuring and controlling our key risks, ensuring that
attention is focused on what matters most. We undertake Process Risk and Control Assessments (PRCA) across
all of our key activities to ensure that appropriate and effective controls are in place, and treatment plans are
identified where strengthening is required. Key risk responsibilities are viewed through an enterprise-wide lens,
which allows for greater ownership of top risks by subject matter experts. Each material risk is assessed on the
basis of its inherent exposure, its residual exposure in the prevailing control environment and its target exposure
if different from current residuat levels. This process whilst in operation, is one which continues to be refined and
matured to ensure the organisation’s control environment is operating within our risk appetite.

Our Business Enterprise Risk Tool (BERT) is used to record and manage our key processes, the controls we have in
place, any treatment plans to improve our control environment and to record our management of risk events. All
colleagues have access to BERT enabling them to view risk data across the organisation.

We continually look to improve our controls in line with industry best practice and the environment in which we
operate.

Reporting .

QOur risk reporting processes are critical to understanding the specific and aggregate levels of risk to which we are
exposed and the effectiveness of our controls to manage these risks. We promote insightful reporting at al} levels
to encourage debate on what matters most, and to ensure effective action is being taken at an appropriate level
to address any current or emerging areas of concern.

Resilience plans and stress testing

Financial and Operational Resilience are key areas of focus. Our capital and liquidity adequacy are assessed on
(at least) an annual basis through the ICAAP and ILAAP. Business recovery plans for severe incidents are reviewed
on a regular basis, while our Recovery and Resolution Plans review our playbooks and recovery capacity in
response to extreme but plausible threats to our viability.

Risk Management during COVID-19

The effectiveness of our resilience planning was evident in our response to the COVID-19 pandemic. Our crisis
management tearm {CMT) was formally invoked in March and daily crisis management activity remained in place
until October. Reporting packs were created using both existing and new MI to ensure focus on the most
important issues as the situation evolved. The CMT was re-implemented in January due to the increased COVID-
19 infection rates across the UK and the national lockdown and remains alert to any further changing
gircumstances that may impact the Bank.

‘Risk Management Structure

We adopt a Three Lines of Defence framework to provide a basis for the identification and management of all
risks associated to our business model and strategy. Within our Three Lines of Defence framework:

- FirstLine. Primaryresponsibility for the identification, management, monitoring and control of risks rests
with our commercial and operational teams. The First Line teams, as subject matter experts, own the
processes and controls used to manage risks within risk appetite and are responsible for the design,
operation and testing of the key controls.

+  Second Line. The independent Risk Management Division is responsible for providing risk frameworks,
policies, guidance and oversight within which the First Line can manage its risks.

- Third Line. Our Internal Audit Division provides independent assurance on the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control processes in mitigating and reporting risks.

11
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Argos Financial Services (AFS)

These financial statements present the standalone financial performance and position of Sainsbury’s Bank and
do not consolidate the AFS subsidiaries. However, the risks associated with AFS business are managed in line with
the group wide risk framework, with a suite of Risk Appetite measures in place for AFS and tracked within the
wider Group governance structure.

Key uncertainties

We regularly monitor emerging and evolving changes in the risk environment in order to promote early
discussion to understand and address any threats or opportunities to our business model. We consider specific
emerging threats and opportunities under the following broad themes:

+  Strategic. Reflects both our business model and the markets in which we operate. For example, regular
consideration is given to changes in the competitive market resulting from new entrants or mergers and
acquisitions (M&A) activity, and any resuttant impact on margins.

- Operational. Reflects changes in technology, the impact of internal processes or emerging external best
practices. For example, we continually review the evolving nature of cyber-crime and its impact on the
Bank in terms of financial losses and operational costs to protect our customers.

+ Political and Economic. Reflects the impact of macroeconomic conditions and government policy on our
markets. For example, we continue to reflect the expected impact on UK market conditions arising from
the COVID-19 pandemic and the impact of changes in interest rates, the employment market or house
prices on the demand for our products.

*  Regulatory and Conduct. Reflects continued developments within the financial services sector including
PRA and FCA consultations and changes to Basel regulations. For example, the implementation of
payment holidays as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic.

As more information is known about an emerging risk, it will be subject to a full risk assessment. Actions will then
be taken to manage and control the risk, unless it is assessed as not relevant or not material to the Bank.

COVID-19 has had a significant impact over the last year across all of the four themes noted above. The Bank
responded initially from an operational perspective and deployed its business resilience plans and governance
processes to ensure that both customers and colleagues were supported. The Bank also focused on managing its
credit strategies as the pandemic evolved over the year and extensive support was given to the launch of
emergency payment freezes to assist customers in managing their finances. Whilst the bad debt charge
increased due to the impact of COVID-19, overall the Bank’s portfolios remained robust and continued focus
remains on detecting any signs of emerging deterioration. Our capital and liquidity ratios remain strong and we
continue to assess possible sensitivities and stress outcomes to our plans to ensure we remain resilient.

Climate Change is an emerging threat that potentially exposes the Bank to direct and indirect financial risks. In
linewith PRA guidance (SS3/19), we have developed a strategy to identify, assess and manage our exposure across
the key areas of governance, risk management, scenario analysis and disclosure. The Bank remains on track to
embed its approach to managing the financial risks from climate change by the end of 2021. A framework has
been established to ensure appropriate visibility of the risks arising from climate change and our ICAAP includes
an assessment of the impact of financial risks from climate change, including the impact of extreme weather on
our ability to serve our customers. :
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Principal Risks

Credit Risk

Operationél Risk

Supplier Risk

Financial Crime Risk

What is It?

The risk that a retail customer fails to maintain
their contractual obligations and repay their
borrowing on time.

Losses or disruption resuiting from inadequate or
failed processes, pecple and systems or from
external events.

The risk that key services and processes
outsourced to 3" party suppliers impair the
quality of internal control within the Bank.

Qur “products are used to facilitate Financial
Crime and/or our processes, systems or controls
are non-compliant.

How May it
Arise?

Changes in the economic conditions in the UK
may impact on the ability of our customers to
repay their loans leading to an increase in levels
of bad debt.

Inadequate processes or internal controls may
resuit in poor customer outcomes, service
disruption, reputational damage and/or financial
losses

Inadequate processes or internal controls of the
third-party supplier may result in poor customer
outcomes, service disruption, reputational
damage and/or financial losses for the Bank. This
can also manifest through lack of appropriate
review and diligence of the third party by the
Bank.

Failure to protect our customers may lead to
financiat loss, inconvenience to our custormers
and result in regulatory ceénsure and loss of
confidence in the Bank. '

How Do We
Manage The
Risk?

We lend responsibly, considering the suitability
of the product to meet our customers’ needs
and their ability torepay any debt.

We have policies to support vulnerable
customers and those in financial difficulties.
Credit decisioning based on information from a
number of credit related sources.

Regutar stress testing is undertaken using a
variety of plausible stress scenarios.

A process-centric approach to risk & control
assessment, designed to focus on what matters
most.

A clear operating model to embed consistency
and boost capability across the Bank.
Aggregated reporting and insight on our risk
profile to ensure the highest priority items are
escalated.

Monthly review of our Top Risks with a rolling
agenda of deep-dives,

The management of supplier risk takes piace at
two key times, which are reviewed and approved
by the accountable Bank Executive:

« During the selection of a new supplier, with a
robust assessment of the high-level process
steps associated with the service provisions,
the key failure points which could occur in the
process, and an understanding of the key
controls and appropriate provision of Ml that
evidences the effective operation of these key
controls,

On an ongoing basis as part of the Bank’s
operational risk management framework via
the PRCA process as well as part of the regular
monitoring of supplier performance (including
the use of scorecards and other governance
activity per the supply chain framewark).

Prevention and detection processes, systems.
and controls in place.

Proactive engagement with industry, sharing
intefligence.

Robust horizon scanning to identify and impact
assess emerging threats.

Money Laundering Reporting Officer provides
regular reports on financial crime controls to
Executive and Board committees.

+ Changes in
2020/21

Key focus in the year was the response to
COvID-18.
Management of credit strategies as the
pandemic evolved
Assisting with the launch of Emergency
Payment Freezes.

+ Supporting gradual restart of lending

Ensuring business resilience plans were
operating effectively throughout the pandemic
Enhanced M| to manage a broad range of risks
across the Bank.

+ Review of supply chain to ensure compliance
with new European Banking Association
Outsourcing guidelines.

New workflow and contract management tool
being implemented to enhance controls and
compliance.

We have maintained regular dialogue with our
key suppliers and ensured we monitor for any
supplier showing signs of stress as a result of
COVID-19.

2 line oversight and assurance deep dive
reviews in order to limit any potential fraud risk
exposures

Improvements in fraud prevention capability
Ensuring fraud risk resiliency on the back of
COVID-19.

Sainsbury’s Bank plc Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 28 February 2021




Strategic Report

Principal Risks (continued)

Conduct and Compliance Risks

Capital Adequacy Risk

Liquidity, Funding and Market Risks

What is It?

The risk that our culture, behaviour or actions may
lead to a failure to comply with regulators, or cause
detriment to customers or the markets.

Holding insufficient capital to absorb losses in
normal and stressed conditions or the ineffective
use of capital.

The risk we are unable to meet our obligations as
they fall due or are adversely hit by market rate or
price movements.

How May it Arise?

Failure to understand the needs of our customers
or to provide them with the level of service required
at all stages of the customer journey.

Changes in economic conditions or regulatory
requirements may impact on the level of capital
resources required.

Loss of confidence in the Bank leading to a
material outflow of deposits and/or difficulties in
accessing wholesale funding. Sudden changes or
volatility in market values.

How Do We Manage The Risk?

« Control procedures and processes with clear
reporting and escalation procedures.
{ndependent -oversight of the adequacy and
effectiveness of issues and events.

Horizon scanning of emerging threats or
regulatory changes

Regular, open engagement with our regulators.
Continuous monitoring of control testing
outcomes through PRCA oversight and risk based
assurance activity.

+ Targetrisk appetite range for level of capital held.
Monitoring of capital position, with triggers in
place for escalation.

Capital adequacy target built in to our planning
processes.

Projected capital position updated for any
strategic or external changes.

The annual ICAAP determines the adequacy of
the level and type of capital resources held.

« Risk appetite limits set.

+ Daily monitoring and reporting of key metrics.
Liquidity and funding targets built into planning
process. )

Liquidity Contingency Plan for action under
stress.

Hedging strategies used to reduce exposures to
earnings volatility.

The annual ILAAP determines the adequacy of
liquidity and funding resources held.

+ Changes in 2020/2

Finalised organisational redesign for the function
with key roles now filled.

Enhanced policy oversight model.

Full implementation of SMCR, including Conduct
rules, in AFS and Argos Limited.

Enhanced risk reporting.

PS15/20 came into effect on 16 Dec 20 which
implemented a shift in regulatory capital
requirements from minimum Total Capital
Requirements into buffers that can be used in a
stress.

The impacts of COVID-19 have been updated
including  expectation of higher losses.
Furthermore stress testing analysis has been
undertaken to assess worst case impacts.

+ Replacement of secured funding facility with a
cost effective retained securitisation {Drury Lane)
which offers increased flexibility and reduced
reliance on BoE facilities.

+ Review and assessment of negative rates froma

hedging and interest rate risk perspective.
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Wates Corporate Governance Principles

Sainsbury’s Bank plc applies the Wates Corporate Governance Principles for Large Private Companies (available
on the Financial Reporting Council website).

Principle 1-Purpose and Leadership

Purpose, Values and Culture

The Bank is aligned to the Sainsbury’s Group strategic priority to focus on brands that deliver with a customer
and profit focus whilst supporting the core food business. We aim to drive value for the Sainsbury’s Group by
being an agile, capital and cost-efficient provider of simple, mobile led financial services for Sainsbury’s and
Argos customers. We know that when customers take out a Bank product, they become moare loyal and go on to
spend more in Sainsbury’s and Argos stores. The strategy and objectives were reviewed and updated by the Board
in 2019, including the decision to cease new mortgage originations from September 2019.

Supporting this are the Bank'’s key priorities between now and 2024:-

e Re-shape the Bank’s Balance Sheet
-e  Simplify the organisation
» Strengthen the business

Underpinning those key priorities, the Bank sets a clear risk appetite to operate within and seeks to deliver best-
in-class execution through highly engaged colleagues, working together to deliver its goals.

Details of the Bank’s broader purpose in relation to non-financial matters (Environmental, Social, Employee,
Human Rights and Modern Slavery, Anti-Corruption / Anti-Bribery) are provided on pages 19 to 25.

Strategy

The Board of Directors of the Bank is the key governance body, responsible for the overall strategy, performance
of the business and management of risk. |t delegates responsibility for the day to day running of the business to
the Chief Executive and the Executive Management Team through the apportionment of responsibility and
delegated authorities. The Board holds overall accountability for the outcomes achieved, decisions made and

. steering the company, subject to specific reserved matters which require the consent of J Sainsbury Plc.

Performance against key metrics is measured and reported to the Board and all colleagues on a regular basis.
The metrics link together — as we believe that if we have highly engaged colleagues, who deliver a great service
to our customers, this in turn will help us drive increased profitability and lower costs. As a financial services
business in a highly regulated environment, we also need to ensure we are operating in a safe and sound way too.

Relationship with J Sainsbury Plc

The Bank is a wholly owned subsidiary of J Sainsbury Plc, a listed retailer. J Sainsbury Plc currently has one
Director on the Bank Board. The J Sainsbury Plc appointed director has equal rights and powers as the other
directors. J Sainsbury plc is not involved in the day-to-day management of the Bank. However, J Sainsbury Plc
has certain reserved powers and decisions which fall within those powers must be referred to them by the Bank
Board for their consent before undertaking. Primarily, these reserved matters relate to significant change in the
size and scale of the Bank’s operations, changes in its capital structure including any increases or decreases to
capital, significant individual contracts or legal disputes, changes to directors or officers of the Bank and share
schemes.
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Principle 2 —Board Composition

Chair

The Bank has a separate Chair (an Independent Non-Executive Director) and Chief Executive (an Executive
Director) to ensure that the balance of responsibilities, accountabilities and decision making are effectively
maintained. The Chair plays a key role in creating the conditions for overall Board and individual director
effectiveness.

Balance and Diversity

Recruitment on to the Bank Board combines an assessment of both technical capability and competency skills
to ensure the optimum blend of individual and aggregate capability having regards to the Bank’s long term
strategic plan. Such recruitment is subject to the approval of the Nominations Committee, the Bank Board, J
Sainsbury Plc (as the decision falls within reserved matters) and the relevant requlatory bodies (where
applicable).

Independent Non-Executive Directors bring their experience to bear from across various sectors, notably Financial
Services but also from across Retail, Digital and E-Commerce. These are key areas of focus for the Bank and
aligned to its strategy. Directors update their skills, knowledge and familiarity with the Bank by meeting senior
managerent, a programme of developmental training (from both internal and external speakers) and by
attending appropriate external seminars. There is an induction programme for all new Directors which is tailored
to their specific needs and which provides access to all parts of the business.

Size and Structure
The structure of the Bank Board seeks to ensure the right leadership is in place to become an agile, capital and
cost-efficient provider of simple, mobile-led financial services to Sainsbury’s and Argos customers.

The Bank Board is comprised of an Independent Chair, four other Independent Non-Executive Directors, one Non-
Executive Director appointed by J Sainsbury plc and two Executive Directors — the Bank’s Chief Executive Officer
and its Chief Financial Officer. A biography for each Board Director can be found on the J Sainsbury plc corporate
website: www.about.sainsburys.co.uk/about-us/our-management#sainsburys-bank

The Directors have equal voting rights when making decisions, except the Chair, who has a casting vote at the
Bank Board. All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary and may, if they wish,
take professional advice at the company’s expense. Directors’ duties are exercised through the Board and its sub-
committees per the Governance structure on page 26. Each of these is chaired by one of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors. ' '

Effectiveness

The Board last undertook a formal effectiveness review facilitated by an independent external advisor at the end
of 2015 with an internally led review undertaken in 2018. The next independent review is scheduled for the first
half of the financial year ending 28 February 2022.

Principle 3 - Director Responsibilities

Accountability

Each Board Director has a clear understanding of their accountability and responsibilities via the Individual
Accountability Regime which the Bank introduced in early 2016 and which has been regularly updated since then.
Whilst Board oversight is always maintained, key decisions are made by the individuals and committees with the
most appropriate knowledge and experience.

The Board had a programme of eight main meetings in 2020/21 and has nine planned for 2021/22. One of the Board
meetings is usually set aside each year for strategic planning with the Executive Committee and key stakeholders
from across the Bank, AFS and J Sainsbury Plc as appropriate.
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As part of their annual review, the Bank Chair undertakes a Fit and Proper Assessment and Attestation with each
Board Director. The Senior Independent Non-Executive Director undertakes the same for the Bank Chair.

Conflicts of Interest

Any potential conflicts of interest are identified and considered as part of the recruitment process for on-boarding
new Directors on to the Bank Board. Where there are any concerns raised, they are considered by the Bank’s
Nominations Committee and again at the Board meeting when the recommendation is brought for approval.

Once in situ, should a Director be offered the opportunity to take up a position (Executive or Non-Executive), whilst
retaining their role on the Bank Board, they are required to inform the Bank Chair and the Board would then be
asked to confirm that no conflicts of interest existed or were perceived to exist before accepting the additional
role. Where there are any potential conflicts, appropriate safeguards would be implemented.

Committees _

The Board delegates authority for day-to-day management of the company to the Chief Executive Officer who
exercises this role via the Executive Committee which meets monthly. It is chaired by the Chief Executive and its
membership is made up of the:

- Chief Executive Officer

- Chief Financial Officer

- Chief Risk Officer

- Conduct & Compliance Director

- Chief Operating Officer

- Customer Director — Sainsbury’s Bank

- Customer Director — Argos Financial Services
- HRDirector

Note: The Bank’s Internal Audit Director is a permanent attendee at every meeting.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors are wholly independent in that they have no material business or
relationships with the company that might influence their independence or judgement. In addition, certain
governance responsibilities are delegated to other Board Committees (Audit Committee, Board Risk Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nominations Committee). Membership of these committees is entirely made up
of Non-Executive Directors of the Bank with members of the Bank’s Executive team and other senior colleagues
in attendance. These committees support effective decision making and independent challenge.

Integrity of information

The Board receives regular and timely information at its meeting on all key aspects of the business supported by
arange of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs). The Bank’s various functions prepare and maintain the integrity of
this information in accordance with the Bank’s risk management framework.

Principle 4 — Opportunity and Risk

Opportunity '

The Board is responsible for the overall strategy and performance of the business and its management of risk. [t
undertakes a deep-dive review of the Bank's strategy on at least an annual basis, taking due account of changes
in the operating environment and emerging risks and opportunities. This includes a review of long-term strategic
opportunities, building upon the Bank’s purpose and advantages from being part of the wider Sainsbury’s Group.
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Risk

The Board Risk Committee (BRC) provides the Board with a forward-looking view to anticipate future risks
together with the monitoring and oversight over existing risks within the Risk Appetite set by the Board. It is
responsible for reviewing and reparting its conclusions to the Board on the Bank's risk appetite and the Bank's
risk management framework. The BRC meets at least five times a year.

Responsibilities

In line with the provisions of the Senior Manager & Certification Regime (SMCR), the Bank has allocated the Senior
Manager Functions and prescribed responsibilities in so far as they apply to Sainsbury’s Bank plc and its AFS
subsidiaries. A Management Responsibility Map (MRM) is in place to provide a description of the Bank’s
management and governance arrangements including the reporting lines and details of the individuals who are
part of those arrangements and their prescribed responsibilities. The MRM is owned by the Board which reviews
it at least twice a year.

The Bank has embedded a process-centric approach to identifying, measuring and controlling its key risks. It
focuses attention on what matters most, those risks that can cause the greatest harm to our customers,
reputation or finances. It provides a view on inherent risk, control effectiveness and residual risk assessments. 1t

-informs a bi-annual attestation of control effectiveness that is reviewed by the Board.

Principle 5 - Remuneration

Setting Remuneration ‘

The Board-level Remuneration Committee (RemCo) recommends to the Board the remuneration strategy for the
Executive Directors, Chair, Senior Management and Material Risk Takers. Within this framewaork, its remuneration
policy is aligned to the long-term success of the Company as well as promoting effective risk management and
compliance with applicable statutory and regulatory requirements. RemCo also has oversight-over appointment
and severance terms for relevant employees.

Policies

A review is carried out annually {with input from external advisors) to ensure that the remuneration policy and
practices are industry competitive and in line with the size and complexity of the business and compliant with all
applicable legal and regulatory requirements. The policy also sets out the approach which ensures that reward
decisions are objective, fair and inclusive.

The Directors’ positions and remuneration status are set out in the Directors’ Report (section 34)

Delegating remuneration decisions
Remuneration decisions are delegated through the divisional heads to agree fair and appropriate distribution of
reward based on the principles agreed by RemCo and the performances of individuals across the business.

Subsidiary companies
The remuneration strategy and policies set by RemCo are fully applied to Argos Financial Services.

Principle 6 — Stakeholder Relationships and Engagement

External Impacts

The Board is committed to social responsibility, community engagement and environmental sustainability.
These goals are achieved through a combination of activities and commitments, including measures to support
the Sainsbury’s Group target to achieve NetZero emissions from its operations by 2040.

Stakeholders
The Board promotes good conduct, accountability and transparency with all of the Bank’s key stakeholders
(customers, colleagues, investors, suppliers and banking regulators). Key interactions with each stakeholder
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group are set out in the section 172 statement on page 19. The Board sets a clear ‘tone from the top’ in line with
the Bank’s purpose to be the provider of financial services f_or loyal Sainsbury’s Group Customers.

Workforce

The Bank aims to be a great place to work for all colleagues, enabling them to develop their skills and knowledge
to be the best they can be. Colleagues are encouraged to learn from each other, their managers and through
structured learning activity that develops behavioural and technical capability. Cornerstones of our approach
include investing time in two-way communication between leaders and other colleagues (informing and
listening) and up-skilling leaders to be effective communicators and leaders of people.

Investors in People (IIP) award accreditation to organisations who invest in training and development.
Sainsbury’s has a long-standing relationship with [P and has been awarded Gold in its last four assessments. The
latest assessment which took place in 2019 included the Bank for the first time.

Whistleblowing is an important part of protecting the Bank as it creates a safe way for colleagues to raise any
concerns and challenge poor practice and/or behaviour. The Bank’s whistleblowing policy sets out how colleagues
can report concerns internally, through the Group’s ‘Rightline’ service or through regulators.

Section 172 ‘
The Board fully recognises its obligations under the Companies Act 2006, including those set out in section 172.
Its governance framework and regular programme of agenda items ensures it has due regard to:

s The likely longer-term consequences of its decisions. For example, the Board approves a rolling five-
year strategic plan on an annual basis and regularly monitors its progress through key metrics (which
form the basis of KPIs outlined on page 29) and sub-committees to provide appropriate review, balanced
challenge and transparency on decision making.

e Maintaining the reputation of the Bank (and the Sainsbury’s Group brands it uses) for high
standards of business conduct. The Board promotes the values of the wider Sainsbury’s Group across
the organisation. These values help colleagues to know how to act at work and we believe they're right
because they're also the way that many of us live outside of work too. Sainsbury’s Group (including the
Bank) has always had a strong sense of social, environmental and economic responsibility and an
understanding that our success depends on society’s success. Further details on our approach to
diversity, environmental and social factors are outlined in the Non-Financial reporting section on page
24, .

e The views and interests of its key stakeholders. The Board seeks to understand the views of key
stakeholders in order to inform effective decision-making and to deliver long-term success. It identifies
our core stakeholders as: customers and communities; colleagues; investors; suppliers; and regulators.
The interaction with each stakeholder group is set out in the following section.

By taking regard of these factors, the Board seeks to ensure that the Directors have acted both individually and
collectively in a way that would, in good faith, be considered likely to promote the success of the Bank while
having due regard to all its stakeholders and to the matters set out in paragraphs a to f of section 172 of the
Companies Act 2006.

Key Stakeholders

_ Customers and Communities

Here at Sainsbury's Bank we recognise that money influences all areas of our customers' lives. Whether it's during
their daily commute to work or in planning a holiday with their family, we know how important saving money
and savvy spending is to them.
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We're currently working on a new customer strategy that makes best use of our data and insight to ensure we
speak to our customers about relevant topics, at the right time and through the right channels. We consider not
only acquiring new customers, but also how best to retain and reward those already with us. We plan out
customer journeys, with engaging, personalised content, overlaid by targeted communications when the time is
right.

Our customers inspire our content - from money-saving ideas, to tips for looking after a new puppy or earning
more Nectar points on their credit card. All topics we hope will inform and engage them, encouraging them to
stick with us and consider us for any financial services needs in the future.

Customer satisfaction is measured through Net Promoter Score (NPS) and by capturing online and telephone
feedback and is reported to the Board. Findings are used to improve our customers’ experience and engagement
with knowledge being shared across ali of our business. We also have a clear process for responding to customer
complaints and any key themes that are identified are reviewed by the Board and senior management and
discussed with our reguiators.

The Sainsbury’s Group Values and Sustainability Plan underpin our approach to what we do, and how. By acting
in the best interests of all our stakeholders, we can make a sustainable and positive contribution to our
community. We also know that playing an active and supportive role in our community is really important to our
colleagues. It makes us all feel good to know we’re doing something for someone else.

In 2020/21, our colleagues raised over £30k for Maggie’s who help to provide free practical, emotional and social
support to people with Cancer and over £3k for Refuge who provide high quality services for women and children
who have experienced domestic violence to protect and prevent against future violence through education,
training and awareness-raising. We also support the fund-raising activities that Sainsbury’s does each year,
including Comic and Sport relief, with the Bank donating £40k to Comic relief.

Colleagues

We aim to make our Bank a great place to work for all colleagues. Our ‘Great Place to Work Group’ is part of the
group-wide approach, enabling colleagues’ voices to be heard and providing an effective way to communicate
what matters to our colleagues to make a difference in our business. This is also mirrored in our Wellbeing
Champions and Inclusion Working Group members.

We want our colleagues to develop their skills and knowledge to reach their potential, learning from each other,
their managers and through structured learning activity that develops behavioural, professional, technical and
regulatory capability. How it feels to work at our Bank makes us different because our Values guide everything
we do. Cornerstones of our approach include investing time in two-way communication between leaders and
other colleagues — informing and listening —and building trust through clear accountabilities and leadership. We

check in with our colleagues regularly to gather their feedback on what we do well and how we can improve how’

it feels to work for the Bank. Our ‘We're Listening’ surveys focus on sustainable engagement to understand the
strength of connection our colleagues have to our business and brand over the long term. The results of these
surveys are discussed by the Board.

We are committed to an equal opportunities policy for recruitment and selection, through training and
development and to performance reviews and promotion. As part of the Sainsbury’s Group, the Bank supports the
Group’s vision to become the ‘most inclusive’ retailer by embracing our differences across the Bank. The activities
we’re undertaking to be a more diverse and inclusive organisation are fundamentally about fairness and equality.
A balanced workforce at all levels improves culture, behaviours, outcomes, profitability and productivity. With
this diversity comes a variety of ideas and views that inform decision-making and enable us to understand our
customers better.

As part of Sainsbury’s Group, the Bank has well developed policies for the fair and equal treatment of all
colleagues. During the year, a number of mandatory e-learning modules have been developed to ensure that our
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policies are understood throughout the organisation. We have a workplace adjustments process in place for our
colleagues who are living with a disability or long term health condition which operates through the Government’s
Access to Work scheme. Workplace adjustments can be made at any point during a colleague’s employment with
us.

The Bank offers a comprehensive and competitive total reward package. In support of the wider objectives of J
Sainsbury plc, our colleagues are encouraged to participate in two all employee share plans, namely the Savings-
Related Share Option Plan (‘Sharesave’) and the All-Employee Share Ownership Plan, of which the Sainsbury’s
Share Purchase Plan ('SSPP’) is a part.

In response to colleague feedback, the Bank and Group have worked together to put an affordable colleague loan
scheme in place with third party Salary Finance. Salary Finance take loan repayments directly from colleagues’
pay via payroll. This means loan interest rates are often lower and a wider range of criteria can be used than most
lenders when reviewing and approving loan applications. Colleagues’ applications are assessed to make sure the
loan is appropriate and affordable for them.

Investors

J Sainsbury plc owns 100% of our equity capital and we aiso have debt investors through our Tier 2 capital
issuance. Our Board sets our risk appetite to support and protect investor value and to ensure we operate within
appropriate and agreed levels and types of risks.

Our strategic aim is to be the provider of Financial Services for loyal Sainsbury’s Group customers. The Group’s
interests are represented by an appointed Non-executive Director to ensure effective challenge and collaboration
to grow our connected services. Where interests are not aligned, this is managed through disclosure and activities
to minimise potential conflicts.

Suppliers

Our Board understands the importance of our supply chain in delivering our plans and the long-term success of
the business. We seek a strong degree of engagement with 3rd party suppliers across the end-to-end supplier
management process, from sourcing to procurement to relationship management to contract reviews. We
recognise that when we outsource a service, we do not outsource the responsibility. We ensure our suppliers are
compliant with regulatory requirements and have the necessary controls in place in line with risks to make sure
we continue to meet a high standard of conduct for our customers. Our Supply Chain Oversight Committee
provides performance oversight of our suppliers and reports to senior management and the Board.

Continuous and pro-active collaboration with our suppliers is undertaken on aregular basis. This provides a forum
for developing the business relationship and to ensure we receive an effective service, identify and manage risk
appropriately and operate in line with our values. A key factor in building effective relationships with our
suppliers is ensuring our requirements are clear and that they are paid on time. The Bank’s iSupplier internet
portal provides suppliers with access to the purchase orders raised and allows them to allocate their respective
invoices once they have fulfilled the order requirements.

Regulators

We are regulated by the Prudential Regulation Authority for prudential issues and by the Financial Conduct
Authority for conduct of business matters. We engage with regulators on an open and proactive basis, ensuring
full compliance with the letter and spirit of the rules we operate within.

We recognise the trust that customers piace in the Sainsbury and Argos brands and seek to maintain that by
operating in a safe and sound way. Our Head of Conduct and Compliance provides oversight of any emerging
compliance risks and reports any areas of concern to the Board.
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Key Strategic Decisions

Response to COVID-19 — The Bank moved quickly at the start of the COVID-19 pandemic to support existing
customers in terms of Emergency Payment Freeze capability and took necessary steps to ensure Credit Risk
policy was adopted to mitigate potential impacts linked to the market stress.

To make it as easy as possible for customers and to minimise call volumes coming into our contact centres, we
set up an online form that customers could complete with their payment freeze request. We also published
information on our website and emailed our customers to make them aware of the options available to them. Our
contact centre staff played a critical role in managing the customer experience to ensure each case was treated
on an individual basis to ensure the right outcome was achieved.

We held regular calls with the FCA and PRA to talk about our operational resilience, our financial resilience and
our treatment of our customers. The FCA was particularly focussed on our treatment of vulnerable customers and
how we made sure that we knew who they are and that we continued to support them in the right way. Our

meetings were constructive and helpful, with the regulators also providing their insights on what they expected

from us and what they were seeing across the wider industry. The Payment Services Regulator were also in
communication with us about our ATM estate and ensuring access to cash.

Travel l\/lonéy - Lockdown began at the beginning of the financial year which impacted the entire travel market,
resulting in the closure of our Travel Money business. Travel Money colleagues from closed Bureaux were
redeployed into Sainsbury’s supermarkets to support our Sainsbury’s store colleagues when it was needed most.
As part of J Sainsburys, the Bank has been working closely with the relevant authorities and plans have been put
in place to make sure we protect colleagues. Regular colleague communications have been sent throughout the
year to update on the different lockdown restrictions across the United Kingdom and the impact this has had on
our ways of working and a dedicated COVID-19 response page has been set up on the Group intranet for all
colleagues to access.

Digital transformation — Throughout the year, we have been making great progress in making our customer
experience easier and strengthening our business a with lower cost customer proposition through numerous
digital developments. This is aligned to our objective to be an agile, capital and cost-efficient provider of simple,
mobile-led financial services.

e  Working with Google we introduced Google Pay Wallet for our credit card customers. This means that
our custormners are now be able to add their Sainsbury’s Bank Credit Card to their Google Pay Wallet which
enables them to make in-app and tap-to-pay purchases on their Android phones, tablets or watches.

e A key milestone as part of our digital strategy is investment in our Loans and Savings application
Journey, speeding up and streamlining the process for customers. Once live, they will be able to use their
mobile phones to complete our required checks. Accounts are set up quicker, and loan funds are
delivered sooner. '

e Our Car & Home Insurance customers can now pay online, see Nectar offers as part of the sales journey
and they can ‘Live Chat’, allowing customers to get quick and easy assistance when required.

Our significant effort to improve digital has allowed us to engage with our customers more effectively through

digital channels. As a result, we have seen a 20% year on year increase in the share of all Bank site traffic coming

from maobile devices, which has allowed us to expand our digital marketing channels, with 90% of all applicants

now starting digitally. This also contributes to the Group’s environmental targets, with 70% of customers now
-receiving paperless statements.

Drury Lane Securitisation — The Bank launched a secured funding programme in November 2020, the Drury
Lane Personal Loans Securitisation, that created £500m of tradeable debt securities backed by unsecured
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personal loans. The securities were retained by the Bank, and represent AAA-rated collateral that can be used to

-borrow funds in the debt capital markets or, once the securities are approved, from the Bank of England.

The transaction further improves our already strong quuidity position in line with our core strategic priority to
strengthen the Bank. It facilitates the diversification of funding sources, creates contingent funding options and
reduces the Bank’s reliance on Bank of England funding schemes. The transaction was structured to comply with

- Simplified, Transparent and Standardise (STS) requirements and all relevant Securitisation Regulation.

Although not a reserved matter, we kept the J Sainsbury Plc Board informed of the intention to issue the
transaction. The transaction wasalso reviewed with our regulator as part of the ILAAP and Corporate Plan ahead
of the transaction commencement. ‘

Supplier relationships — The Bank has always performed financial health monitoring of our suppliers and since
the onset of COVID-19, we have maintained regular dialogue with our key suppliers and ensured we monitor for
any supplier showing signs of stress. The majority of the Bank’s suppliers have payment terms of 30 days from
date of receipt of invoice, with some being aligned to J Sainsburys terms of 45 or 60 days. As a result of our
monitoring and our relatively favourable 30 day terms, we decided not to reduce our payment terms across the
suppliers, nor did we receive any requests from suppliers to reduce them.
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Non-Financial Reporting

The Bank has complied with the EU non-financial reporting directive requirements contained in sections 414CA
and 414CB of the Companies Act 2006. The below disclosures are intended to help stakeholders understand the
Bank’s position on key non-financial matters.

Business model

The Bank seeks to provide quality financial services to Sainsbury’s and Argos customers at an affordable price.
The business model is outlined on pages 1to 2 of this Strategic Report.

Environmental
We are always looking for ways to manage the impact our operations have on our environment and are part of

the Sainsbury’s commitment to become a Net Zero operation by 2040. As part of Sainsbury’s, our facilities
management approach actively manages, and looks to continuously improve, our waste management and

recycling. We use video and telephone conferencing facilities rather than trave! to meetings, where possible.’

Colleagues are encouraged to use public transport and cycle to work, with shower facilities provided at our head
office and larger sites. We take time to identify practical ways to reduce the environmental impact of our leaflets
and Point of Sale materials in stores.

Additionally, we have invested in digital capabilities reflecting the increasingly digital world our customers live
in. This investment continues to drive more sustainable banking. For example, our Loans platform affords the
Bank the ability to offer e-signatures thus removing the requirement to both generate and send physical Personal
Loan documentation. Our Credit Card app also offers the ability to check your balance and get paperless
statements, thus reducing the amount of physical paper statements being sent to customers.

Social

The Sainsbury’s Group Valtues and Sustainability Plan underpin our approach to what we do, and how. By acting
in the best interests of all our stakeholders, we can make a sustainable and positive contribution to our
community. Details on our interaction with our communities is outlined on page 19.

Our customers

Here at Sainsbury's Bank we recognise that money influences all areas of our customers' lives. Our approach to
our customers is outlined on page 19.

Employee

We aim to make our Bank a great place to work for all colleagues. Our approach to make our Bank a great place
to work is outlined on page 20
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Gender Pay Gap
Details of the Bank’s gender pay gap can be found within the Sainsbury’s Group disclosures at

https://jsainsbury.sharepoint.com/sites/DocCentre/mysainsburys/DiversityInclusion%20Documents/Gender%2
0&%20Ethnicity%20Pay%20Gap%20Report%202020%20v9. pdf#search=gender%20pay%20gap

The mean gender pay gap of 36.6% (as at April 2020) has marginally increased from 35.9% in April 2019. The gap
is, in part, reflective of the structure of our business whereby in store Travel Money Bureaux colleagues are
directly employed rather than filling our positions through a third-party agency. Around 45% of Sainsbury’s Bank
colleagues work in these roles on hourly rates of pay and a large proportion of these roles are held by women. In
addition to the Travel Money colleague composition, Sainsbury’s Bank still have more men than women in the
most senior and higher paid roles and more women in hourly paid positions further impacting the pay gap.

" We are continuing to see an improvement in female representation at senior levels since signing up to the Women

in Finance Charter (WIF) in 2018. The Charter, which was created by HM Treasury, is designed to support and
motivate finance companies to land activity and drive initiatives that, over time, will help address gender
imbalance at senior leadership levels. By the end of the 2023/24 financial year we have a target to achieve 40%
female representation at senior levels, with an interim target of 35% for the coming 2021/22 financial year. Qur
most recent WIF submission in September 2020 was 33%, up from 29% in September 2019.

Human rights and modern slavery

Sainsbury’s Bank has a zero tolerance towards modern slavery and human trafficking. We are committed to
acting ethically and with integrity in all of our business relationships. We will work closely with our business
partners, suppliers and supply chains to ensure there is no place for modern stavery and human trafficking in any
area of our business. We will regularly review our processes and controls to prevent modern slavery and human
trafficking.

Our policies and procedures support and encourage colleagues to raise concerns relating to modern slavery or
the presence of it in our supply chain at the earliest opportunity. Our full Modern Slavery statement is published
on the Bank’s website (https:.//www.sainsburysbank.co.uk/~/media/files/pdf/modern-s|avery-statement.pdf).

Anti-Corruption / Anti-Bribery

As a financial services provider, the Bank is exposed to the risk of facilitating bribery or aiding corruption through
the provision of financial services. This risk is managed through a clear set of policies, procedures and controls
which are communicated to colieagues through regular mandatory training modules including Anti-Bribery and
Corruption, Anti-Money Laundering, Conduct Rules, Conflicts of Interest and Whistleblowing. The training
material is reviewed and updated to reflect changes in legislation or best practice (e.g. tailored senior
management training). The Supply Chain Management team regularly monitors suppliers to ensure that
processes and controls are in line with the Bank’s required standards.
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Governance

The diagram below shows the Governance structure in place for Sainsbury’s Bank as at 28 February 2021:

Board
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There were the following significant changes to our governance structure during the accounting period:

e The Customer Conduct Committee and Product and Pricing Committees were merged with the
Customer Divisional Risk Committee to form the Divisional Risk & Conduct Committee shown in the
diagram above.

e The Operational, Conduct and Financial Crime Risk Committee was stood down as its purpose and
responsibilities were deemed to be adequately covered elsewhere, outside of this particular
committee. The Ml and reports that were previously tabled at this committee are now all tabled at the
respective Divisional Risk Committees, with a clear line of sight from there into the aggregated report
at the Executive Risk Committee, including the divisional and Top Risk profiles.

Board-level Governance

The Board is the key governance body, holding overall accountability for the decisions made and outcomes
achieved by the Bank, subject to specific reserved matters that require the consent of J Sainsbury Plc. The Board
meets at least eight times a year and is comprised of an independent Non-Executive Chair, other Independent
Non-Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors from J Sainsbury pic and key Executive members from the
Bank. Further details on the Board composition may be found on page 34.

A number of Board functions are delegated to four key sub-committees. The role and scope of authority for each
sub-committee is fully outlined in a documented Terms of Reference:

¢ Audit Committee. The Audit Committee’s key responsibility is to advise the Board on the Bank’s
financial statements, including systems and controls and related policy issues together with

26

Sainsbury’s Bank plc Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 28 February 2021



Strategic Report

relationships with external auditors. The Audit Committee also reviews and challenges where necessary
management’s response to any major External or Internal Audit recommendations. The Committee is
also responsible for reviewing and approving the internal audit plan and budget, and for ensuring that
the function is adequately resourced. The Audit Committee meets at least four times a year. At least
once a year the Audit Committee will meet without Executive Management being present. Additionally,
the Audit Committee will meet with the External Auditors and:Sainsbury’s Bank Director of Internal
Audit. .

s Nominations Committee. The Nominations Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure, size
and composition of the Board. The Committee is also responsible for the succession planning of the
Board and the Executive Management Team and for ensuring a formal, rigorous and transparent process
for recommending appointments to the Board to the Bank’s shareholders. The Bank recognises the
benefits of achieving a diverse Board and Executive Management Team to reflect the environment in
which it operates. The Nominations Committee will meet at least once per year, with additional
meetings convened as required.

e Remuneration Committee. The role of the Remuneration Committee (RemCo} is to determine and
agree with the Board the broad policy for remuneration and for compliance with the Remuneration Code
(the Code) to the extent that the provisions apply to the Bank. RemCo is responsible for recommending,
monitoring and noting the level and structure of remuneration for senior management (categorised as
‘Code Staff for the purposes of the Code) and senior risk management and compliance colleagues and it
continually reviews and assesses the impact of remuneration policies on the risk profile of the Bank and
employee behaviour. RemCo also has oversight over appointment and severance terms for relevant
employees. The Remuneration Committee meets at ieast three times per year.

e Board Risk Committee. The Board Risk Committee (BRC) provides the Board with a forward-looking
view to anticipate future risks together with the monitoring and oversight over existing risks within the
Risk Appetite set by the Board. It is responsible for reviewing and reporting its conclusions to the Board
on the Bank's risk appetite and the Bank's risk management framework. The Board Risk Committee
meets at least five times a year.

Executive-level Governance.

The Board delegates the appropriate responsibility, authority and accountability to the Chief Executive Officer
{(CEO) to deliver the Bank's strategy through the appropriate governance committees and the Executive
Committee. The CEO chairs the Executive Committee (ExCo) and is supported by a number of other executive-level
committees to provide the appropriate checks, balances and transparency on decision making.

Each committee has a documented Terms of Reference, with delegated authority to the Chair who is the
appropriate identified accountable individual in line with their Statement of Responsibilities under FCA and PRA
rules (Senior Manager Regime). ‘

CEO Executive Committee:

e Executive Committee (ExCo). The role of the Committee is to advise and assist the CEQ in overseeing
the Bank’s activities, performance and making significant decisions relating to the executive
management of the Bank. ExCo meets on a monthly basis.

Chief Risk Officer (CRO) Executive Committees:

e Executive Risk Committee (ERC). The ERC is responsible for ensuring that the Enterprise Wide Risk -
Management Framework (EWRMF) is effective in ensuring that risks are adequately and consistently
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managed withinrisk appetite. [n doing so the ERC ensures that appropriate policies and methodologies
are in place to manage the Bank’s Primary Risk types. The ERC meets on a monthly basis.

e Retail Credit Risk Committee (RCRC). The RCRC is responsible for monitoring the performance of the
retail lending book, ensuring there is an effective credit risk management framework and that the Bank
is operating within its credit risk appetite. The RCRC meets on a monthly basis.

CFO Executive Committees:

e Assetand Liability Committee (ALCo). ALCo is responsible for ensuring the balance sheet of the Bank
is managed effectively and within risk appetite. Its main areas of responsibility are market risk,
wholesale credit risk, interest rate risk, liquidity & funding risk and capital adequacy. ALCo meets on a
monthly basis. ’

e Finance Committee. The role of the committee is to ensure there are effective levels of governance in
place across the Bank’s finance function so that significant decisions are fully informed, transparent,
recorded and reported and in line with risk appetite and relevant governance structures. The Finance
Committee meets on a menthly basis. .

e Supply Chain Oversight Committee. The role of the committee is to ensure there is an effective bank-
wide supply chain performance and risk management framework that manages outsourcing, oversees
delivery and makes decisions to ensure the Bank is able to robustly manage and oversee its suppliers.
The Supply Chain Committee meets six times a year.

Divisional Risk Committees
Each division across the Bank has its own Divisional Risk Committee (DRC) chaired by the relevant ExCo member.

The role of the DRC is to ensure the effectiveness of the EWRMF within the Division, so that risks are effectively
and consistently managed within the overall approved risk appetite. Each DRC provides input on material risks
which may affect the Group to the Executive Risk Committee.

Pillar 3 report
Further information on the risks and controls can be found in the Bank’s Pillar 3 Disclosure Report for the year

ended 28 February 2021. This report is published in the investor relations section of the J Sainsbury plc corporate
website: https://www.about sainsburys.co.uk/investors/results-reports-and-presentations#2021.
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Key Performance Indicators (KPls)

’ Cuétomer ~ Tobethe provider of financial services for loyal Sainsbury’s Group customers, delivered
‘ _ through simple mobile led customer journeys -

Active Customer numbers (million) — the number of customers ~ Net Promoter Score - proportion of customers who have

who hold an active account (savings / loans / credit card / completed a transaction classed as ‘promoters’ net of ‘detractors’
insurance policy) when considering the likelihood of recommending the Bank to a
friend
0,
18 2.1 45% 50%
FY21 FY20 Fya FY20
| Colleague  Continuetofocusonanoutstandingand engaged team |

Sustainable engagement - measures the ~ Females in Senior Roles BAME in Senior Roles

strength of colleagues’ connection to the
Sainsbury's Group. Includes AFS.

33%

82% 76% 29%
0,
D l ' ' E -
FY21 FY20 Fy21 Fy20 FY21 Fy20
_Financial  Deliverthefinancialplan
Underlying Profit — profit before tax before any one-off items Return on capital employed — underlying profit after tax divided
that are raterial and infrequent in nature by average equity
33 27%

] 1

|36! ‘ H&g %

FY21 FY20 FY21 FY20
Net Interest Margin — net interest income  Cost Income ratio (underlying) — Bad Debt Asset ratio — Impairment losses
as a percentage of average interest- Underlying operating expenses as a as a percentage of the average balance of
bearing assets percentage of total income loans and advances to customers
90% 75% '
24% 2.5% 11%
. ’—I I ' \ . 7%
Fy21 FY20 Fy21 FY20 Fy2i FY20

Saifeﬁéﬁd Sound ' ) Manage the busmess W|th|n Rlsk Appetlte o

Tier 1 Capital Ratio~ Tier 1 capital as a percentage of risk- Liquidity Coverage Ratio - Percentage of the stock of high liquid

weighted assets assets such as cash to net cash out flow over a 30-day period
o 306%
176% 14.1%
132%
T FY21 FY20

FY21 FY20

Our performance, including reference to the above KPIs is further outlined in the business review on page 6 and
the financial review on page 30.
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Financial review

The Bank's performance for the year ended 28 February 2021 and financial position at the end of that period are
presented in the income statement and balance sheet. A summarised income staternent and balance sheet are
presented below: '

Summary income statement 2021 2020 Change
£m Em %

Total income 221 323 (32)
Operating expenses - ) (326) (268) 22
Add: items excluded from underlying results’ 126 25 404
Underlying operating expenses (200) (243) (18)
Impairment losses on financial assets (58) (48) 21
Profit/(Loss) on financial instruments 1 (2 (150)
Add: items exciuded from underlying results* - 3 (100)
Underlying gains on financial instruments 1 1 -
Underlying profit before taxation (36) 33 (209)
Statutory profit / (loss) before taxation (162) 5 (3.340)

* [tems of an unusual and infrequent nature that do not relate to the Bank’s underlying performance have been excluded in presenting
underlying profit before tax. N

Statutory loss before tax for the year ended 28 February 2021 was £162m compared to a profit of £5m in the prior
year. This was driven by a 209% decrease in underlying profit due to the significant impacts of COVID-19 on
income and impairments and an increase in non-underlying operating expenses of 404% predominately driven
by the write down of fixed assets following the review carried out in the year of the Bank’s capitalised assets.

Income is 32% lower, with a fall in interest income reflecting a significant contraction in lending balances of 29%
due to lower consumer demand, lower retail spend and a tightening of credit appetite for new customers to
protect the Bank, partially offset by management action on savings rates to manage the balance sheet. Fee
income has dropped markedly due to the closure of Travel Money Bureaux for most of the year, and a decline in
ATM income due to lower cash usage, particularly during lockdown.

Underlying costs decreased by 18% reflective of lower trading volumes and cost savings being delivered through
management actions including reducing FTE, digitising and improving customer journeys and enhanced
detection controls reducing fraud costs. Impairment losses increased by 21% which is reflective of prudent
provisioning estimates during the current economic climate.

Summary balance sheet : 20217 2020 Change

£m £m %
Loans and advances to customers 4,599 ' 6,511 (29)
Cash and cash equivalents 1,028 572 80
Other 1,811 2,319 (22)
Total assets 1,438 9,402 (21)
Customer deposits 5.128 6,312 ) (19)
Wholesale funds 1,161 1,781 (35)
Subordinated debt 179 180 )]
Other 121 129 (6)
Total liabilities 6,589 8402 (22)
Net assets 849 1,000 (15)
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In balance sheet terms, our Loans advances reduced by 28% and our Credit Cards advances by 27% as market
demand reduced and management took action to protect the Bank against economic uncertainty. Mortgage

balances have steadily reduced throughout the year, with balances ending the year at £1.3bn.

Customer deposits decreased 19% driven by careful management of the customer savings rates (spot rates
declined 74 bps from February 2020) following the Bank of England Base rate decrease in March 2020

J Sainsbury plc provided no further share capital injections in line with Bank strategy.

Net interest incorme
Net interest income summary 2021 2020 Change
’ fm Em %
Interest receivable (underlying) 241 304 (1)
Interest payable (81) (115) (30)
Net interest income (underlying) 160 189 (15)
Net interest margin (underlying) 2.4% 2.5% (0.1
Summary of funds lent to customers _
and held as liquid assets 2021 2020 Change
fm £m %
Unsecured loans and advances to customers 3,344 4,636 : (28)
Secured loans and advances to customers 1,255 1,875 (33)
Cash, balances with central banks and other demand 968 500 94
deposits
Financial investments 587 853 (31)
Loans and advances to banks 37 40 {8)
6,191 7,904 (22)
Summary of funds raised 2021 2020 Change
fm £m %
Custormer deposits 5.128 6,312 (19)
Other deposits 1,161 1,680 (31)
Other borrowed funds : - 101 (100)
Subordinated debt 179 180 Mm
6,468 8,273 (22)

Underlying interest income decreased to £241m driven by lower customer balances. Mortgage balances reduced
by £620m and represent 27% of total lending as at 28 February 2021. The portfolio continues to run off as
customers opt to change mortgage provider.

Interest payable decreased by 30% driven by 54 basis points reduction in average blended savings rates and a
12% reduction in average funding balances in line with decreased lending. With the Mortgage book rolling off,
overall funding requirements are reducing, some of which has been exacerbated by the temporary fall off in new
lending volumes as a result of lockdown restrictions.

Net interest margin decreased to 2.4%, driven by lower customer volumes generating lower returns partially
offset by decline in interest payable. :
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Fee, commission, and other operating income

Fee, commission, and other operating income summary 2021 2020 Change

£fm £m %
Banking income 41 76 (46)
Insurance income 26 26 -
Other income 1 2 (50)
Total fees and commissions receivable 68 104 (35)
Total fees and commissions payable 9) (10) (10)
Other operating income 2 40 (95)
Net fees, commission, and other operating income 61 134 (54)

Banking income decreased by 46% largely driven by a reduction in retail spend and foreign travel driving lower
Credit Card fees and lower cash usage during lockdown adversely impacting ATM income.

Insurance income remained flat year-on-year despite lockdown restrictions reducing Travel insurance new
business volumes significantly as customers were unable to travel abroad. Car and Home insurance remained

resilient with renewals up 11% and 8% respectively.

The 95% decline in other operating income was driven by the closure of our Travel Money business following
lockdown restrictions across the United Kingdom.

Operating expenses and investment

Operating expenses summary 2021 2020 Change

. £m fm %
Underlying staff costs 58 75 (23)
Other underlying operating costs 19 137 (13)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 3 8 (63)
Amortisation of intangible assets 20 23 (13)
Underlying operating expenses 200 243 (18)
Non-underlying operating expenses , 126 25 404
Total operating expenses 326 268 22

Underlying operating expenses of £200m decreased by £43m year-on-year as they benefited from lower volume
related costs and the redeployment of Travel Money colleagues into the stores after Bureaux were closed (the
associated costs being recharged to the retailer). This was further supported by:

- management action to reduce our colleague headcount as part of our Target Operating Model review;

- optimisation of our customer journey and operations.

- mitigation of fraud losses; and

- successful delivery of cost savings through contract negotiations.

Total depreciation and amortisation for the financial year reduced 63% following the impairment of fixed assets
at the half year, providing a cost benefit in the second half of the year.

Non-underlying costs are largely associated with the impairment of fixed assets following the review carried out
in the year of the Bank’s capitalised assets (refer to note 19 for more details). Other non-underlying costs relate
to ongoing migration of the Loans Back Book, which is expected to be completed in FY22, and restructuring costs
as we continue to reshape our business to remain efficient and cost effective.
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Summary of fixed assets 2021 2020 Change
£m £m %
[ntangible assets : 155 234 (34)
Property, plant and equipment 11 38 (71
166 272 (39)

Intangible assets were £155m and tangible assets were £11m, a decrease of £79m and £27m respectively since
prior year. This was mainly due to an impairment assessment of fixed assets following the impact of COVID-19 on
the Bank’s product suite, totalling £105m.

Intangible additions in the year were £23m as we improve our mobile app to remain digitally focused and
enhance our banking platforms by adapting to new regulations and creating operational efficiencies. Tangible

additions of £1m related to improved functionality and security of our ATM estate.

Impairment losses on financial assets

Impairment losses summary 2021 2020 Change
£m £m %

Impairment losses on financial assets 58 48 21

Bad debt asset ratio 11% 0.7% 0.4%

Impairment losses have increased 21%, whilst the bad debt asset ratio increased from 0.4% to 1.1% mainly to
account for the expected future unemployment increases due to COVID-19, partly offset by a lower underlying
impairment charge driven by balance sheet contraction. Economic scenarios have been modelled using multiple
forward-looking economic scenarios and associated weightings. Judgements are applied to adjust modelled
outputs to reflect future economic losses where they are not fully captured or when a financial asset has
experienced a significant increase in credit risk.

The pandemic has required our business to change and adapt quickly to economic circumstances which have
been evolving throughout the financial year. We have offered customer support through payment holidays and
increased our investment in Collections and Recoveries to help those who need it. Government action, particularly
the furlough scheme, has been key to maintaining lower levels of modelled provisioning by reducing the impacts
of lower GDP and higher unemployment.

Despite the threat that COVID-19 poses, the Bank is very well capitalised with an increase in CET1 ratio to 17.6%.
Additionally, the Bank has substantial excess liquidity with the LCR increasing 186% to 306%. We therefore
remain confident that the Bank will not require capital injections from Group, in line with our strategic objective.

We are well positioned for recovery with strong capital and liquidity which we can deploy to grow balances and
revenues in a safe and controlled manner.

By order of the Board

Z2Acld ’7"%“3‘/‘/"’\

Donald McNaughton

Company Secretary
28 April 2021
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Directors’ report

The Directors have the pleasure in submitting their annual report and the financial statements of Sainsbury’s
Bank plc (‘the Bank’) for the year ended 28 February 2021.

Board of Directors

The Board comprises two executive Directors and six non-executive Directors. The position and remuneration of
members who served during the year is described in the following table:

Remunerating Appointment/ resignation
Name Position entity date
Lesley Jones Chair (Independent Non-Executive) ~ Sainsbury’s Bank plc  Appointed 29 January 2021
Roger Davis Chair (Independent Non-Executive) ~ Sainsbury’s Bank plc  Resigned 29 January 2021
Peter Clarke Senior Independent Non-Executive  Sainsbury’s Bank plc
Michael Ross independent Non-Executive Sainsbury’s Bank plc
Carole Butter Independent Non-Executive Sainsbury’s Bank plc
Guy Thomas Independent Non-Executive Sainsbury’s Bank plc
Clodagh Moriarty ~ Non-Executive J Sainsbury plc
James Brown Chief Executive Officer . Sainsbury’s Bank plc
Michael Larkin Chief Financial Officer Sainsbury’s Bank plc

Unless otherwise stated above, all of the Directors in office at the date of this report served throughout the period,
and up to the date of approval of these financial statements.

Board selection criteria

We regard succession at Board and senior management level as a key priority. Recruitment into the Board
combines an assessment of both technical, leadership capability and competency skills to ensure the optimum
blend of individual and aggregate capability having regard to our long term strategic plan. Board recruitment is
subject to the approval of the Nominations Committee, the Board and the relevant regulatory bodies (PRA/FCA).

Board diversity

We are committed to promoting a diverse and inclusive workplace at all levels, reflective of the communities in
which we do business. Our diversity and inclusion vision aligns with that of our parent J Sainsbury plc whose aim
is to be ‘the most inclusive retailer’. We will achieve this aspiration by recruiting, retaining and developing diverse
and talented people and creating an inclusive environment where everyone can be the best they can be and where
diverse views are welcomed. The Nominations Committee is responsible for ensuring there is an appropriate
balance of skills and experience across the Board.

Directors’ indemnities.

The Bank has provided an indemnity for the benefit of all of its current Directors which is a qualifying third party
indemnity provision for the purpose of the Companies Act 2006. This was in force throughout the financial year
and at the date of signing of the financial statements. Directors’ and Officers’ insurance is provided through the
JSainsbury plc Group policy. Neither the indemnities nor the insurance provide cover in the event that the Director
is proved to have acted fraudulently.

Statement ofcorporate governance arrangements
Refer to the governance section of the Strategic Report on page 26 for the Bank’s governance arrangements.

Employee engagement
Refer to the S172(1) statement on page 20 of the Strategic report for details on employee engagement.

Business relationships
Refer to the S172(1) statement on page 21 of the Strategic report for details on business relationships.
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Colleagues ,
Refer to the S$172(1) statement on page 20 for the Bank’s policies on colleagues and the employment of disabled
persons. : :

Charitable and other donations
During the year the Bank made charitable donations in the UK of £40,250 (2020: £41,429). No political donations
were made during the year (2019: £nil). : »

Independent auditors
Ernst & Young LLP have expressed their willingness to continue in office as auditors.

Disclosure of information to auditors

At the date of this report, each of the Directors in office has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as
a director in order to make himself/nerself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the
Bank’s auditors are aware of that information. As far as each Director is aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the Bank’s auditors are unaware.

Financial risk management

Details of the use of financial instruments, together with risk management disclosures, can be found in note 35
and the Risk Management section in the Strategic report on pages 10 to 14.

Future developments
The development of the Bank is set out in the Strategic Report on pages 5 to 9.

Post balance sheet events
Details of events occurring after the reporting date are discussed in note 42 to the Financial Statements.

Going concern
The Directors have considered the appropriateness of the going concern basis of preparation of the financial

. statements taking into account the Bank’s current and projected performance.

The risk management framework as described in the strategic report on page 10 is considered adequate in
managing liquidity and other key risks in the current environment. The Bank continues to maintain its strong
capital and liquidity position and has also been subject to review and challenge by the PRA as part of its remit
as lead regulator of the Bank. Further information on the key financial risks of the business can be found in
note 35.

The Directors are satisfied that the Bank has adequate resources to continue in business for the foreseeable
future, being at least 12 months from the date of approval of the Financial Statements, taking into account a
range of possible operational, economic and legal scenarios. Consequently, the going concern basis continues to
be appropriate in preparing the financial statements.

Dividends

The loss after tax for the year attributable to the shareholders is £156m (2020: £7m profit). The Directors do not
recommend payment of a dividend (2020: £nil).

By order of the Board and signed on its behalf by

Donald McNaughton

Company Secretary
28 April 2021
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Statement of Directors' responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic report, Directors’ report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
Directors have prepared the financial statements in accordance with international accounting standards in
conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. Under company law the Directors must not approve
the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
Sainsbury’s Bank plc (‘the Company’) and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period. In preparing these
financial statements, the Directors are required to:

» select suitable accounting policies in accordance with International Accounting Standard 8: Accounting
Poticies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors and then apply them consistently;

e present information, including accounting policies, in @ manner that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable information;

e provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in international
accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 is insufficient to
enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the
financial performance; and

e state that the Bank has complied with international accounting standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006, subject to any material departures and explained in the
financial statements.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company
and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Annual Report and Financial Statements

and Pillar 3 disclosures included on the J Sainsbury pic website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the

" preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

By order of the Board and signed on its behalf by

Z2 el # ﬁmjcuﬁ/\m

Donald McNaughton
Company Secretary
28 April 2021
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Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Sainsbury’s Bank Plc (“the Bank”) for the year ended 28 February
2021 which comprise the Income Statement, the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Balance Sheet, the
Statement of Changes in Equity, the Cash Flow Statement, and the related notes 1to 42, including a summary of
significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and International Accounting Standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies

-Act 2006.

In our opinion, the financial statements:

o give atrue and fair view of the company’s affairs as at 28 February 2021 and of its loss for the year then
ended; ‘

e  have been properly prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standards in conformity with
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and

e  have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s
Ethical Standard as applied to listed public interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements. :

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. Our evaluation of the directors’
assessment of the Bank'’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting included:

e We performed a walkthrough to confirm our understanding of the Bank’s financial statement close
process, which included how Management undertakes their own going concern assessment. We
engaged with Management early to ensure all key factors were considered in their assessment;

e We obtained an understanding of Management’s rationale for use of the going concern basis of
accounting through reviewing their going concern assessment conclusions, which stressed the
underlying forecasts and assumptions, and performing inquiries of Management and those charged
with governance,

e  We evaluated Management’s going concern assessment which included reviewing their evaluation of
the Bank'’s resilience to financial and operational stress on capital and liquidity requirements. The Bank
included a number of adverse scenarios in their forecasts in order to incorporate unexpected changes to
their forecasted capital and liquidity levels and we have tested the clerical accuracy of these forecasts
and assessed the assumptions applied within the forecasts; -

e We evaluated Management's assessment by considering viability under different stress scenarios,
including the impact of strategic plans and the economic impact of COVID-19;

e We have reviewed Management's reverse stress testing in order to identify what factors would lead to
all of the Bank’ capital and liquidity eroding during the going concem period and assessed those factors
against the likelihood of occurrence;

e We considered the Bank’s operational resilience and its response to the impact COVID-19 has had on its
business operations, including the operations of its third-party providers; and

e  Wereviewed the Bank’s going concern disclosures included in the annual report in order to assess that
the disclosures were appropriate and in conformity with the reporting standards.
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Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a period of 12 months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report. However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this
statement is not a guarantee as to the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Overview of our audit approach

Key audit e Expected credit loss provisions

matters ¢ Revenue recognition — Effective interest rate method

e Strategic changes planned or implemented by the Bank, particularly as it relates
to the valuation of intangible assets

e Reliance on the processes and controls of third-party service providers

Materiality «  QOverall materiality of £3.25m which represents 1.5% of gross margin {net interest

income and net fees and commissions income).

An overview of the scope of our audit

Tailoring the scope )

Our assessment of audit risk, our evaluation of materiality and our allocation of performance materiality
determine our audit scope for the Bank. This enables us to form an opinion on the financial statements. We take
into account size, risk profile, the organisation of the Bank and effectiveness of controls, including controls and
changes in the business environment when assessing the level of work to be performed. All audit work was
performed directly by the audit engagement team.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material
misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) that we identified. These matters included those which had the
greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit, and directing the efforts of
the engagement team. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a
whole, and in our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Sainsbury’s Bank plc

Risk

Our response to the risk

Key observations
communicated to the Audit
Committee

Expected Credit Loss Provisions

Impairment Provision (2021:
£174m, 2020: £183m)

Note 13 of the Financial

Statements (page 68)

Customer receivables comprise
unsecured personal loans; credit
cards; and, mortgages.

Credit  provisions  represent
Management’s best estimate of
impairment  and  significant
judgements and estimates are
made in determining the timing
and measurement of expected
credit loss (ECL).

The key judgements and
estimates in respect of the timing
and measurement of ECL include:

(a) Completeness and
accuracy of data;

(b) The accounting
interpretations and
modelling assumptions
used to build the models
that calculate ECL;

{(c) Input and assumptio'ns
used to estimate the
impact of the multiple
€Cconomic scenarios,

(d) Allocation of assets to
stage 1, 2 or 3 using
criteria  in  accordance

with  the accounting
standard;
(e) Completeness and

valuation of post model
adjustments; and
(f) Accuracy and adequacy
of the financial
statement disclosures.
We consider the risk related to the
ECL provisions to have increased
from the prior year due to the

We performed procedures to assess
the design effectiveness of key
controls across the processes relevant
to the impairment provision
calculation, involving specialists to
assist us in performing our procedures
where appropriate. This included
consideration of model governance,
data accuracy and completeness,
multiple economic scenarios, and the
allocation of assets into stages.

We performed control testing over the

key controls identified to ensure that
the controls operated effectively
throughout  the  period.  This
considered the key elements
identified in the previous paragraph.

We reviewed the minutes of the
model and risk committees where
inputs, assumptions, and
adjustments to the ECL were
discussed and approved.

We verified the data used in the ECL
calculation onasample basis. In order
to complete this testing. we
independently reconciled a sample of
data feeding the model from source
systems.

We considered the assumptions,
inputs and formulas used across the
entire population of ECL models. This
included assessing the
appropriateness of mode! design and
the formulas used, considering
alternative modelling techniques and
recalculating the Probability of
Default, Loss Given Default and
Exposure at Default for a sample of
the models.

With the support of our internal
modelling specialists, we performed
testing over models implemented

We are satisfied that provisions
for the impairment of loans and
advances to customers were
reasonable and recognised- in
accordance with the applicable
reporting framework based on
our procedures performed.

We recalculated the staging
and noted no  material
differences. We also performed
sensitivity analysis on the
staging criteria and noted that
substantial changes would be
needed to the criteria to result
in a material difference.

The economic uncertainty
overlay was  within  our
independently established
reasonable range.

Our testing of models and
mode! assumptions identified
some instances of over and
under estimation. We
aggregated these differences
and were satisfied that the
overall estimate recorded was
reasonable.
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continued economic uncertainty
as a result of COVID-19.

during the year to validate that they
were functioning as intended.

We tested the assumptions and
inputs used in the ECL models with
the support of our internal modelling
and economic  specialists.  In
particular, we challenged the
correlation and impact of the
macroeconomic factors to the ECL
and independently recalculated
critical components of the ECL. In
addition, we assessed the base and
alternative  economic  scenarios,
including challenging probability
weights and comparing to other
scenarios from a variety of external
sources, as well as EY internally
developed forecasts.

We assessed whether forecasted
macroeconomic variables used within
the models, such as GDP and
unemployment, were appropriate by
performing a benchmark analysis
against the Bank’s peers. We also
considered the different weightings
applied to the various economic
scenarios in our analysis.

We challenged the criteria used to
allocate an asset to stage 1, 2and 3 in
accordance with IFRS 9 and reviewed
assets in stages 1, 2, and 3 to verify
that they were allocated to the
appropriate  stage. This review
included consideration of the impact
of emergency payment freezes (EPF)
on the stage of an account. We have
tested that the key data elements
(KDEs) relevant to EPFs, namely the
entry date and the exit date, have
been correctly reflected in the system.

We challenged model overlays for
appropriateness using our knowledge
and experience across the industry.
We assessed the appropriateness of
the scenarios and calculations used in
determining the overlay to be applied
in response to the economic
uncertainty due to COVID-19.
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We assessed the adequacy and
appropriateness of disclosures for
compliance with the accounting
standards.

Revenue Recognition — Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method

EIR Asset (2021: £109m, 2020:
£109m)

Notes 2 3, 4, and 13 of the
Financial Statements (pages 56,
62, 63 and 68)

Accounting standards require that
interest income on personal loans,
credit cards and mortgages is
recognised at the effective
interest rate (EIR). For products
with introductory rates, such as
credit  cards, where  the
reversionary interest rate in future
years is expected to be greater but
receipt of such interest income
depends on the  customer
remaining with the Bank, there is
significant judgement involved in
forecasting customer behaviour
and estimating ‘the future
expected cash flows. As such, we
have identified a fraud risk related
to the timing of revenue
recognition through the
Management override of internal
controls.

Therisks, as we see them, are that:
{a) the data used in making
the estimate is not
complete and accurate;
(b) the judgements made
are not appropriate; and
(c) the calculation
methodology is  not
applied correctly.
We consider the risk related to
recognition of revenue using the
effective interest rate method,
including the associated fraud
risk, to be consistent with the prior
year.

We performed procedures to obtain
an understanding of the key controls
in place over the EIR process.

We considered the completeness and
accuracy of data inputs into the
models by:

(i)

inspecting ‘reconciliations from
the general ledger to the source
systems; and subsequently from
the general ledger to the
electronic data warehouse.
verifying the data used in the EIR
calculation on a sample basis. In
order to complete this testing, we
have independently reconciled a
sample of data feeding the model
from the source system.

We tested the appropriateness of
Management’s assumptions by:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Reviewing Management’s

methodology paper to assess if

the variables mentioned are in
accordance with the applicable
accounting standards.

Comparing judgements to:

o Observable recent customer
behaviour, including the
impacts of COVID-19;

o Product pricing models; and

o Consideration of future
expected changes.

Testing for indications of

Management bias through:

o Comparison of customer
behaviour to observable
market data;

o Review of judgements made
by Management for
consistency ~ with  prior
periods where appropriate;

o Assessment of
Management's  sensitivity
analysis to  determine
whether the EIR

We are satisfied that the
assumptions used in
determining the EIR asset
balance are reasonable and in
accordance with the applicable
accounting framework.

We obtained assurance over the
completeness and accuracy of
data used within the EIR models
through performing
reconciliations of the data to
source systems and sample
testing of data attributes.

We obtained assurance that the
EIR  model  assumptions,
including behavioural life, were
reasonable in the context of

current market data and
observable customer
behaviours.

We observed that the models
were operating effectively in
the  calculation of  EIR
adjustments and that the
results were accurately
reflected in the general ledger.
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adjustments were within an
appropriate  range  and
reasonable in relation to the
impact of COVID-19;

o Performing a sensitivity
analysis over the impact of
alternative behavioural lives
and challenging the current
behavioural lives used; and

o (Challenging model true-ups
for appropriateness using

our knowledge and
experience  across  the
industry, including
assessing the

appropriateness of the data,
scenarios and calculations
used in the determining the
true-up applied.

We tested the application of the

calculation methodology by:

(i) Engaging our modelling experts
to test that the variables /

assumptions stated in
Management’s methodology
paper are  modelled in

Management’s workings;

(i) Engaging our modelling experts
to review the macros that are
used to input the raw data into
the model files;

(iii) Performing sample testingon the
year-end calculation of EIR,
including the underlying data
integrity, the clerical accuracy of
the calculation, and the
application of relevant
assumptions; and

(iv) Performing sensitivity analysis
on individual cohorts to validate
the model moves in line with
expectation.

intangible assets

Strategic changes planned or implemented by the Bank, particularly as it relates to the valuation of

Intangible Asset — Net Book

Value (2021: £155m, 2020:
£234m)

Note 19 of the Financial
Statements (page 82)

We performed procedures to obtain
an understanding of the key controls
in place over the intangible asset
process, including the related
impairment assessment, and
challenged the design and operating
effectiveness of those key controls
identified.

We are satisfied that the
impairment taken in the
financial year is reasonable and
has been appropriately
recorded during the period.

We are satisfied that the

assumptions implicit in the
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The Bank has embarked on a
number of initiatives as a result of
the strategic changes announced
in September 2019.

Additionally, the Bank has
updated their forecasts as a result
of the economic impact of COVID-
19 and identified indicators of
impairment in their intangible
asset portfolio, performing an
impairment assessment during
the year to calculate the
impairment charge recorded.

These changes impact the
valuation of existing intangible
asset balances, as well as the
capitalisation of future costs
incurred.

Therisks, as we see them, are that:
(@) The impact on the
financial statements as a
result of decisions in
strategic direction are
not recorded accurately

or in a timely manner;

(b) The judgements made
are not appropriate,
including those related
to future forecasts; and

{c) The calculation of
impairment  is  not
accurate or applied to the
correct assets, impacting

future run costs.

We consider therisk related to the
strategic changes planned or
implemented by the Bank to have
increased from the prior year due
to the impact of COVID-19. This
includes the increased risk related
to the valuation of intangible
assets due to the impairment
calculated and recorded during
the year.

We obtained Management’s
impairment assessment that was
undertaken in the first half of the year
as aresultof indicators of impairment
being identified at that time. We
undertook an analysis of the updated
corporate plan to identify key
assumptions in the impairment
calculation and whether these
appropriately considered the impacts
of COVID-19 and the related economic
uncertainty. This included
challenging the impacts of strategic
changes on future forecasted periods.

We assessed the methodology
applied by Management in
identifying cash-generating units
(CGU's) and in calculating the
impairment charge at the individual
asset level.

We evaluated Management’s forecast
at an individual asset level, as well as
at a cash-generating unit (CGU) level
and then undertook stress testing
over the related key assumptions and
then assessed the impact on the
impairment calculation.

We obtained the allocation of the
total impairment charge at an
individual asset level and assessed
this for reasonableness.

We assessed the useful economic
lives assigned to a sample of
intangibles assets to ensure that the
assigned lives are appropriate based
on the asset class and the impacts of
any strategic changes.

“We obtained Management's year-end

impairment assessment, compared
the current year results to forecast,
and assessed future period forecasts
to identify indicators of impairment
at year-end. We also reviewed
historical ~ performance  against
budget to conclude on the accuracy of
the Bank’s budgeting process.

valuation of intangible assets at
year-end are reasonable and
that strategic changes made
during the year have been
accurately reflected within the
financial statements in
accordance with the applicable
reporting framework.
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We reviewed the intangible asset
register to confirm that no costs were
capitalised for asset categories that
were fully or partially impaired as a
result of the interim impairment
assessment performed.

Wereviewed significant contracts and
agreements with material third
parties of the Bank and assessed the
need for any onerous contract
provisions to be recorded as aresult of
the strategic changes.

Reliance on the processes and controls of third-party service providers

Many of the Bank’s IT systems are
hosted by third parties. The Bank
receives reports, prepared by
independent audit firms, on the
effectiveness of the third parties’
control environments. In some
instances, deficiencies in the
control environment were
identified or assurance was
unable to be provided by the third
party over the design and
operating effectiveness of their
control environment.

There is a risk that there is
insufficient oversight of the third-
party service providers and where
control deficiencies at the third-
party are identified, a report is not
obtained, or assurance is unable
to be obtained over the third-party
control environment. These risks
are:

(a) not mitigated by
compensating controls within the
Bank’s own control environment;
and ‘
(b) not appropriately quantified
by the Bank.

We consider the risk related to the
oversight of third-party service
providers to have increased in the
current year due to a change in the
Bank'’s ability to rely on the design
and operating effectiveness of
controls in place at a key third
party service organization.

We performed procedures to obtain
an understanding of the processes
which are outsourced to third-parties
and their impact on the financial
statements.

We made inquiries of Management to
understand the process through
which the Bank:

(i) Monitors control
effectiveness at third parties,
including any impact on
their processes and controls
as aresult of COVID-19; and

(ii) Performs control activities
over the completeness and
accuracy of data received
from third parties.

We tested the design and operating
effectiveness of Management’s key
controls in place over third-party
service providers that directly impact
financial reporting.

For the third-party service provider
control reports obtained by the Bank,
we obtained and inspected the
reports to understand the design and
operating effectiveness of the key
controls in place. Where control
deficiencies were identified or
assurance  over the  control
environment was unable to be
provided, we assessed the impact on
our planned audit procedures and,
where necessary, performed

We  obtained  reasonable
assurance over the Bank’s
processes and controls over the
completeness and accuracy of
data received from third parties.

Where  deficiencies  were
identified at third party service
providers or reports were unable
to be obtained, we obtained
reasonable assurance over the
completeness and accuracy of
the impacted account balances
through identifying and testing
compensating controls in place
at the Bank or performing
incremental substantive testing
procedures.
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incremental procedures in order to
obtain reasonable assurance over the
impacted account balances.

We reviewed the assessment

performed by Management over the

third-party service provider control
reports, including:

(i) The mapping of the key controls
within the report to the processes
in place at the Bank and
identification of any
complimentary end user controls
in place at the Bank; and

(i) Management’s evaluation of any
ineffective controls within the
control reports.

Where reports were not obtained or
reports that were obtained were
unable to provide reliance over the
third-party control environment, we
obtained and reviewed Management’s
assessment of these observations and
the mitigating controls in place at the
Bank. We tested the compensating
controls where appropriate. Where we
were no longer able to rely on controls
as a result of the deficiencies
identified, we reassessed our planned
audit procedures over impacted
balances and performed incremental
substantive testing procedures in
order to obtain reasonable assurance
over account balances.

In the prior year, our auditor's report included a key audit matter in relation to the impact of COVID-19.

[n the current year, we have incorporated the impact of COVID-19 into our planned audit procedures for the above
key audit matters and therefore have not included this as a separate matter in our report.

Our application of materiality
We apply the concept of materiality in planning and performing the audit, in evaluating the effect of identified
misstatements on the audit and in forming our audit opinion.

Materiality

The magnitude of an omission or misstatement that, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of the users of the financial statements. Materiality provides a
basis for determining the nature and extent of our audit procedures.

We determined materiality for the Bank to be £3.25 million (2020: £3.5 million), which is 1.5% (2020: 1%) of gross
margin (net interest income and net fees and commissions income). The increase in percentage applied to
determine our materiality, which is within the acceptable range proposed by our audit methodology, was based
on consideration of various factors, including changes in the business environment and the viability of the
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business. We believe that gross margin provides us with an appropriate basis for materiality as the Bank is a
profit-oriented entity but loss making in the current year.

Performance materiality

The application of materiality at the individual account or balance level. It is set at an amount to reduce to an

appropriately low level the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected misstaterments

exceeds materiality.

e On the basis of our risk assessments, together with our assessment of the company’s overall control

environment, our judgement was that performance materiality should be established at 50% (2020:
50%) of our planning materiality, namely £1.6 million (2020: £1.75 million). We have set performance
materiality at this percentage based on various considerations, including the past history of
misstatements, the effectiveness of the control environment and other factors affecting the entity and
its financial reporting, which is consistent with our approach in the prior year.

Reporting threshold
. An amount below which identified misstatements are considered as being clearly trivial.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them all uncorrected audit differences in excess of
£0.16 mitlion (2020: £0.175 million), which is set at 5% of planning materiality, as well as differences below that
threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds. This is consistent with the prior year.

We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements against both the quantitative measures of materiality discussed
above and in light of other relevant qualitative considerations in forming our opinion.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained
within the annual report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial
statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
e theinformation given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
e the strategic report and directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstaterments in the strategic report or directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires
us to report to you if, in our opinion: :
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e adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or
e thefinancial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
¢ certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
e we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set out on page 36, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including
fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect irregularities, inctuding fraud. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through
collusion. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed

below.

However, the primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with both those charged with
governance of the Bank and Management.

 We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the Bank
and determined that the most significant are the regulations, license conditions and supervisory
requirements of the Prudential Regulation Authority (‘PRA’) and the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA’)
and the Companies Act 2006.

e We understood how Sainsbury’s Bank plc is complying with those frameworks by making inquiries of
Management, internal audit, and those responsible for legal and compliance matters. We also
performed a review of regulatory correspondence and reviewed minutes of the Board and Board Risk
Committee meetings held. We gained an understanding of the Bank’s approach to governance
demonstrated by the Board’s enterprise risk management framework (‘ERMF’) and internal control
processes. We also reviewed the Bank’s complaints process and Whistleblowing Policy.

e We assessed the susceptibility of the Bank’s financial statements to material misstatement, including
how fraud might occur by assessing the controls that the Bank has established to address risks of fraud
identified by the Bank, or that otherwise seek to prevent, deter, or detect fraud. We also considered
performance and incentive plan targets and their potential to influence Management to manage
earnings.

e Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify non-compliance with such
laws and regulations. Our procedures involved inquiries of legal counsel, executive management,
internal audit, and performed procedures over the risk of management override of internal control. We
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" Independent auditors’ report to the members of Sainsbury’s Bank plc
also focused our audit procedures on areas identified as higher risk as referred to in the Key Audit
Matters section of this report.

e The Bank operates in the financial services industry which is a highly regulated environment. As such
the Senior Statutory Auditor considered the experience and expertise of the engagement team to ensure
that the team had the appropriate competence and capabilities, which included the use of specialists
where appropriate.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council’'s website at https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor’s report.

Other matters we are required to address

¢ Following a recommendation from the Audit Committee, we were appointed by the Bank on 16 August
2017 to audit the financial statements for the year ending 28 February 2018 and subsequent financial
periods.

e The period of total uninterrupted engagement including previous renewals and reappointments is 4
years, covering the years ending 28 February 2018 to 28 February 2021.

e The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided to the Bank and we
remain independent of the Bank in conducting the audit.

e Theaudit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the Audit Committee

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Bank’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Bank’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Bank and the Bank’s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

<< D = P

Peter Wallace (Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
Edinburgh ‘
28 April 2021

‘Notes:

1. The maintenance and integrity of the Sainsburys Bank Plc web site is the responsibility of the directors; the
work carried out by the auditors does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors
accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the financial statements since they were
initially presented on the web site.

2. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may
differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
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Income statement
For the year ended 28 February 2021

2020

2021
Note fm £m
fnterest income 3 241 304
Interest expense 3 (81 (115)
Net interest income 160 189
Fees and commissions income 4 68 104
Fees and commissions expense 4 9 (10)
Net fees and commissions income 59 94
Other operating income 5 2 40
Total income 221 323
Administrative expenses 6 (198) (232)
Impairment of Intangible and Tangible assets
Property, plant and equipment 20 (23) (5)
Intangible assets 19 (82) -
Depreciation and amortisation
Property, plant and equipment 20 (3) (8)
Intangible assets 19 (20) 23)
Operating expenses (326) (268)
Impairment losses on financial assets 13.34 (58) (48)
Realised gains on financial instruments 7 1 1
Fair value (losses) on financial instruments 7 - (3)
{Loss) / profit before taxation (162) 5
Analysed as: :
Underlying profit before tax (36) 33
Non-underlying items 8 (126) (28)
' (162) 5
Taxation 12 6 2
(Loss} / profit for the financial year attributable to the owners of (156) 1
the Bank .
The accompanying notes on pages 54 to 129 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 28 February 2021

2021 2020
Note £m £m
(Loss) / profit for the financial year (156) 7
Other comprehensive income:
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss: )

Financial assets fair value movements 31 1 2
[tems that do not qualify for reclassification to profit or loss: ‘

Financial assets fair value movements 3 1 -
Total other comprehensive income, net of tax 2 2
Total comprehensive (expense) / income (154) 9
All amounts are attributable to the owners of the Bank.

The accompanying notes on pages 54 to 129 form part of these financial statements.
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Balance sheet

As at 28 February 2021
2021 2020
Note £m £m
Assets »
Cash, balances with central banks and other demand deposits 15 968 500
Loans and advances to banks' 16 37 40
Derivative financial instruments v 2 6
Investment securities 18 587 853
‘Loans and advances to customers 13 4,599 6,511
[nvestments in subsidiaries 2 325 325
Intangible assets ' 19 155 234
Property, plant and equipment ‘ 20 11 . 38
* Other assets' : .2 754 895
Total assets ' 7,438 9,402
Liabilities :
Customer accounts . 23 5.128 6,312
Other deposits 2 1,161 1,680
Other borrowed funds 25 - 101
Subordinated liabilities %6 : 179 180
Derivative financial instruments I 29 35
Other liabilities 27 84 86
Provisions for liabilities and charges 28 8 8
Total liabilities 6,589 8.402
Equity
Called up share capital 29 901 901
Retained earnings 30 (55) 98
Other reserves 31 3 ]
Total equity ‘849 1,000
Total equity and liabilities 7,438 9,402

(1) — Loans and advances to banks were previously presented within other assets.

The financial statements on pages 49 to 129 were approved by the Board of Directors on 28 April 2021 and signed
on its behalf by: ' o

Meo

Mike Larkin (Apr 28, 2021 19:26 GMT+1)

Michael Larkin
Director and Chief Financial Officer

The accompanying notes on pages 54 to 129 form part of these financial statements.

Sainsbury's Bank plc — Company number 3279730
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Statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 28 February 2021

Calledup Retained Other Total
share earningsreserves equity
Note capital

£m £m Em £m

As at 1 March 2020 901 98 1 1,000

Loss for the financial year - (156) - (156)
Other comprehensive income:

Financial assets fair value movements (FVOCI) 3 - - 2 2

Total comprehensive income - - (156) 2 (154)

Transactions with owners:
Share based payment (net of tax) - 3 - 3
At 28 February 2021 901 (55) 3 849
Calledup Retained  Other
share  earnings reserves Total equity
Note capital

£m fm Em £m

As at 1 March 2019 866 87 M 952

Profit for the financial year 7 - 7
Other comprehensive income:

Financial assets fair value movements (FVOCI) 31 - - 2 2

Total comprehensive income - 7 2 9

Transactions with owners:

Shares issued in the year 29 35 - - 35

Share based payment (net of tax) - 4 . 4

At 29 February 2020 901 98 1 1,000

All amounts are attributable to the owners of the Bank.

The accompanying notes on pages 54 to 129 form part of these financial statements.
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Cash flow statement
For the year ended 28 February 2021

2021 2020

Note £fm £fm

{Loss) / Profit before taxation ' : (162) 5
Non-cash and other items included in profit before taxation _ 202 99
Change in operating assets and liabilities' 450 (185)
Income taxes repayments 2 2
-Cash flows generated from / (used in) operating activities 14 49?2 (79)
Purchase of equipment v A ] (3)
Purchase of intangibles (23) (34)
Cash flows used in investing activities . (24) (37)
Proceeds from issue of share capital 29 - 35
Interest paid on subordinated liabilities (1) 1)
Lease payments (1) -
Cash flows (used in) / generated from financing activities (12) 24
Change in cash and cash equivalents 456 (92)
Opening cash and cash equivalents 572 664
Closing cash and cash equivalents 1,028 572

For the purposes of the cash flow statements, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

2021 2020

£m £m

Cash, balances with central banks and other demand deposits : 968 500
Less: mandatory reserve deposit held at central banks (17 (18)
951 482

Loans and advances to banks' ' 27 40
Investment securities 50 50
1,028 572

(1) —Cash and cash equivalents presented in the financial statements as at 29 February 2020 has been amended to reflect £40m of loans to

banks due in less than 3 months that was previously presented within other assets.

The accompanying notes on pages 54 10 129 part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements

1. Basis of Preparation

The Bank's financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with international accounting
standards in conformity with the requirements of
the Companies Act 2006.

These financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention as modified for
the revaluation of financial assets and liabilities
(including derivative instruments) held at fair value
through profit and loss and fair value through other
comprehensive income. The principal accounting
policies have been applied consistently throughout
the year.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006 requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Company’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial
statements are disclosed in note 2.

The financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis. This is discussed in the
Directors’ report, under the heading ‘Going Concern'.

The Directors have considered the appropriateness
of the going concern basis of preparation of the
financial statements taking into account the Bank’s
current and projected performance.

The risk management framework as described in
the strategic report on page 10 is considered
adequate in managing liquidity and other key risks
in the current environment. The Bank continues to
maintain its strong capital and liquidity position
and has also been subject to review and challenge
by the PRA as part of its remit as lead regulator of
the Bank. Further information on the key financial
risks of the business can be found in note 35.

The Directors are satisfied that the Bank has
adequate resources to continue in business for the
foreseeable future taking into account a range of
possible operational, economic and legal scenarios.
Consequently, the going concern basis continues to

be appropriaAte in preparing the financial
statements.

The -Bank is a wholly-owned subsidiary of J
Sainsbury plc and is included in the consolidated
financial statements of J Sainsbury plc which are
publicly available. Consequently, the Bank has
taken advantage of the exemption from preparing
consolidated financial statements under the terms
of section 400 of the Companies Act 2006 and IFRS
10 4(a).

Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in sterling
which is the Bank's functional and presentation
currency. Foreign currency transactions are
translated into sterling at the exchange rate
prevailing at the date of the transaction. Monetary
assets and liabilities are translated at balance sheet
date exchange rates. Exchange differences arising
are recognised in the income statement.

Classification and measurement of financial

instruments

The Bank classifies all of its financial assets based

on the business model for managing the assets and

the assets’ contractual terms, measured at either:

- Amortised cost,

- Fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI), or

- Fairvalue through profit and loss (FVPL)

To determine their classification and measurement
category, IFRS 9 requires all financial assets, except
equity instruments and derivatives, to be assessed
based on a combination of the entity's business
model for managing the assets and the
instruments’ contractual cash flow characteristics.
The business model assessment reflects how the
Bank manages the risks relating to the underlying
financial assets, including whether the Bank’s
principal objective is to collect the contractual
cashflows arising from the instruments (amortised
cost), to sell the financial instruments (FVPL) or a
combination thereof (FVOC1).
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Notes‘ to the financial statements (continued)
1. Basis of Preperation (continued)

The Bank’s business model is not assessed on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher
level of aggregated portfolios and is based on
observable factors such as how performance is
reported to the entity’s key management personnel,
the way that risks are managed, how managers of
the business are compensated and the expected
frequency, value and timing of sales are also
important aspects of the Bank’s assessment.

The business model assessment is based on
reasonably expected scenarios without taking
‘worst case’ or ‘stress case’ scenarios into account. If
cash flows after initial recognition are realised in a
way that is different from the Bank’s original
expectations, the Bank does not change the
classification of the remaining financial assets held
in that business model, but incorporates such
information when assessing newly originated or
newly purchased financial assets going forward.

As a second step of its classification process, where
the business model involves the collection of
contractual cashflows, the Bank assesses the
contractual cashflow characteristics of financial
assets to identify whether they can be considered
solely payments of principal and interest (the SPPI
test).

Amortised cost

Financial assets that are principally held for the
collection of contractual cashflows which pass the
SPPI test are classified as amortised cost. [nitial
recognition is at fair value and subsequent
measurement is at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method, less provision for
impairment as described in the impairment section
below.

Fair value through other comprehensive income
Financial assets that are held for both the purpose
of collecting contractual cashflows and to sell are
classified as FVOCI.  Initial recognition and
subsequent measurement is at fair value, with
movements in fair value being recognised through
OCl.  Interest income is measured using the
effective interest rate method and impairment
gains and losses are recognised in the income
statement.

Fair value through profit and loss
Financial assets that do not meet amortised cost or
FVOCI criteria are classified as FVPL.

Equity instruments

Upon initial recognition, -the Bank occasionally
elects to classify irrevocably some of its equity
investments as equity instruments at FVOCI when
they meet the definition of Equity under IAS 32
Financial instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. Such classification is determined
on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Gains and
losses on these equity instruments are never
recycled to profit. Dividends are recognised in profit
or loss as other operating income.

Where this election is not applied equity
instruments are measured at FVPL.

Financial liabilities

Other than derivative financial liabilities, all of the
Bank’s financial liabilities are recognised at
amortised cost. Derivatives are classified as FVPL.

Standards and interpretations effective for the
Company in these financial statements:

The Bank has adopted Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 1 (Amendments to IFRS 9, 1AS 39
and IFRS 7) from 1 March 2020 and elected to early
adopt Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2
(Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and
IFRS 16) (the Phase 2 amendments).

Interest rate benchmark reform »

The Bank applied the Phase 1 amendments which
became effective from 1% January 2020 and the
Phase 2 amendments retrospectively. However, in
accordance with exceptions provided in the Phase 2
amendments, the Bank has elected not to restate
the prior period to reflect the application of these
amendments, including not providing additional
disclosures for 2020. There is no impact on opening
equity balances as a result of retrospective
application.

The Phase 1 amendments provided reliefs that may
otherwise have resulted in the Bank no longer being
able to apply hedge accounting for certain hedge
relationships as a result of uncertainties arising
from the LIBOR benchmark reform. As aresult of the
reliefs the Bank was able to continue existing hedge
accounting whilst implementing its LIBOR to SONIA
transition project.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
1. Basis of Preperation (continued)

The Phase 2 amendments provide practical relief
from certain requirements in the standards. These
reliefs relate to modifications of financial
instruments, lease contracts or hedging
relationships when a benchmark interest rate in a
contract is replaced with a new alternative
benchmark rate. When the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows of a financial instrument is
changed as a direct consequence of interest rate
benchmark reform and is made on an economically
equivalent basis, the Phase 2 amendments provide
apractical expedient to update the effective interest
rate of a financial instrument before applying the
existing requirements in the standards. The
amendments also provide an exception to use a
revised discount rate that reflects the change in
interest rate when remeasuring a lease liability
because of a lease modification that is required by
interest rate benchmark reform.

Finally, the Phase 2 amendments provide a series of
reliefs from certain hedge accounting requirements
when a change required by interest rate benchmark
reform occurs to a hedged item and/or hedging
instrument and  consequently the hedge
relationship can be continued without any
interruption. The details of the accounting policies
are disclosed in note 17.

Other standards and amendments

The Bank has considered the amendment to IFRS 3
for a definition of a business that was effective from
1 March 2020 and the amendment was deemed to
not have a significant impact on the Bank’s financial
statements.

Standards and interpretations effective for the
Company in future periods:

None of the following standards issued by the |ASB
but not yet effective, are expected to have a
material impact on the Bank’s financial statements
in future periods:

— IFRS 17 ‘Insurance Contracts’

2. Critical accounting estimates and
Jjudgements

The preparation of the financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, most
critically in respect of impairment losses on loans

and advances, effective yield and the valuation of
investment securities.

Estimates and judgements- are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates
arerecognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Impairment of loans and advances

Impairment loss models involve the estimation of
future cash flows of financial assets, based on
observable data at the balance sheet date and
historical loss experience for assets with similar
credit risk characteristics. This will typically take
into account the level of arrears, security, past 10ss
experience and default levels. These calculations
are undertaken on a portfolio basis using various
statistical modelling techniques. Impairment
models are continually reviewed to ensure data and
assumptions are appropriate with the most
material assumption being around expected loss
rates.

Significant increase in credit risk (SICR)

The Bank determines whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk by reference to
quantitative thresholds, qualitative indicators and
has also chosen to adopt the rebuttable backstop
presumption that credit risk has significantly
increased if contractual payments are more than 30
days past due.

Quantitative thresholds have been determined that
when the PD of an instrument as at the reporting
date has increased to greater than a specified
multiple of the origination PD, a significant increase
in credit risk is deemed to have occurred.

Qualitative tests are based around selective credit
origination policy rules. In addition to variable risk
appetite metrics, certain rules are permanently in

place at account origination in order to decline

accounts that may demonstrate factors outside of
risk appetite that are not yet reflected in PD
measures. At the reporting date, if an account
satisfies any of these policy decline rules that it had
not at the point of origination, it will be considered
to have significantly increased in credit risk.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
2. Critical accounting estimates and
_Jjudgements (continued)

There is no probationary period applied in respect of
accounts that cure from stage 2 to stage 1. Transfer
criteria have been subject to extensive analysis to
ensure that they appropriately reflect the flow of
accounts from origination to default so as to
maximise the number of accounts that flow through
the stages and minimise accounts that jump from
stage 1 to stage 3. or that fail to enter stage 3 from
stage 2.

The Bank has applied the low credit risk exemption
in respect of its high quality treasury portfolio held
for liquidity purposes. This exemption permits low
credit risk loans {i.e. those considered investment
grade) to remain in Stage 1 without an assessment
of significant increase in credit risk.

Definition of default

The Bank's definition of default is used in
determining those accounts classified as stage 3 (i.e.
credit impaired). The Bank has chosen not to rebut
the backstop presumption prescribed by [FRS 9 that
where an account is 90 days or more past its due
date then default has occurred.

The Bank has also defined a number of unlikeliness

to pay criteria that result in an account being

deemed to have defaulted. These include:

o Where operational collections activities have
been exhausted on accounts that are less than
90 days past due and the account is subject to
recoveries processes

e |f any forbearance has been granted on the
account

e Where the customer is subject to insolvency
proceedings

e Where the customer is deceased

Where an account no longer meets any of the
default criteria, such as by bringing payments back
up to date, the Bank will continue to consider the
account as being in defaulit for a probation period of
24 months from the date when it last met the
definition of default.

COVID-19 impact on IFRS 9 staging

There has been no material change in the approach
to assessing significant increases in credit risk as a
result of COVID-19. However, due to the impact of
COVID-19 on the economic environment ~and
subsequent impact on customers, the portion of

unsecured loans in Stage 2 increased from 8.6% in
2020 to 13.2% in 2021. There was no material
movement in secured loans. ‘

The increase in Stage 2 assets was triggered by
updated macroeconomic forecasts, reflecting a
more negative outlook and increasing the volume of
customer accounts exhibiting significant increases
in credit risk. The granting of payment holidays to
customers does not automatically trigger a SICR
and these customers were not treated as past due or
forborne. However, a customer that has been
granted a payment holiday may still migrate to
Stage 2 where triggers for SICR are met.

Write-off

Loans and advances to customers are written off
(either partially or in full) when there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when
the Bank determines that the borrower does not
have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to write-off. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off result in impairment
gains recorded in the income statement.

Expected lifetime

For the purposes of considering the lifetime
probability of default, the expected lifetime of a
financial asset is the contractual term where this is
fixed within the contract, or in the case of revolving
products such as credit cards a behavioural life is
determined by reference to historic trends.

Modified financial assets

When the contractual cash flows of a financial asset
have been renegotiated or modified and the .
financial asset was not derecognised, its gross
carrying amount is recalculated as the present
value of the modified contractual cash flows,
discounted at the original effective interest rate
with a gain or loss recognised in the income
statement.

Management overlays

In the context of IFRS 9 management overlays are
short-term increases or decreases to the ECL at
either a customer or portfolio level to account for
items that have not been fully reflected in the
existing models.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
2. Critical accounting estimates and
_judgements (continued)

Internal governance is in place to regularly monitor
management overlays and to reduce the reliance on
management overlays through model recalibration
or redevelopment, as appropriate.

Management overlays applied in estimating the
reported ECL at 28 February 2021 are set out in the
following table. The table includes adjustments in
relation to data and model limitations. It shows the
adjustments applicable to the scenario-weighted
ECL numbers.

As at 28 Asat29
February  February

2021 2020

£m £m

Economic adjustment 13 5
PD adjustment 10 -
LGD adjustment 7 -
Operational overlays M 2
Total 29 7

The proportion of management overlay is 17% of the
total ECL provision as at 28 February 2021 (2020: 4%).

The Economic, LGD and PD adjustments have been
included where provision models do not respond
appropriately to the impacts of COVID-19.

The Economic adjustment is applied where the [FRS
9 models do not respond as expected to the
magnitude of the forecast economic shock related
to COVID-19. Offline models have been developed
with an adjusted economic response to produce a
more reasonable ECL that appropriately reacts to
severe negative economic forecast. The Economic
adjustment was initially increased to £23m (2020:
£5m), but subsequently £10m of this overlay
requirement was embedded within live production
models as they were adjusted to reflect the revised
economic forecast.

The further PD adjustment is held to account for the
uncertainty around both the economic assumptions
regarding COVID-19 and the subsequent recovery
and the impact that this will have on the Bank’s ECL.

The LGD adjustment is applied to the ECL to account
for the expectation that LGD will deteriorate due to
the nature of COVID-19. Existing LGD modeis do not

adequately respond to significant changes in
economic variables.

The majority of the Operational overlays relate to
model limitations that have been manually
corrected whilst a permanent fix is being developed.

Macro-economic scenarios

IFRS 9 requires that the measurement of ECL should
reflect an unbiased and probability weighted
amount that is determined by evaluating a range of
forward-looking economic assumptions. The Bank
has engaged an external supplier to provide
economic forecasts which are subject to review,
challenge and approval through the Bank’s
governance processes. ’

For the year ended 28 February 2021, the Bank
commissioned economic scenarios to take account
for the potential ramifications for COVID-19 which
include a range of assumptions relating to exit from
social restrictions, vaccine roll out and furlough and
also includes an additional severe downside
economic scenario.

The ECL models utilise 4 scenarios (2020: 3
scenarios) including a ‘base case’ scenario
considered to be the most likely outcome together
with an upside, downside scenario and severe
downside. The base case has been assigned a
probability weighting of 40% with the upside,
downside and severe downside scenarios weighted
30%, 25%. 5% respectively (2020: base scenario 40%,
upside and downside scenario 30% each).
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

2. Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

The graphs below plot the data for Unemployment, GDP, Consumer price growth and mortgage debt as a
percentage of household income for each of the 4 scenarios used in our IFRS 9 models:
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The most material economic variables to the calculation of ECL are unemployment and GDP.

Our base case scenario envisages a peak unemployment of 7.2% in Q3 2021 before reverting to the long-term
average in 2024 and an initial recovery in GDP with growth of 16% year-on-year at the end of Q2 2021 coinciding

with the lifting of lockdown restrictions.

The key macro-economic assumptions included in the ECL calculation have also been summarised in the table
below (shown as 5 year averages from the reporting date):

As at 28 February 2021
Base Upside Downside Severe
% % % Downside
%
Unemployment rate 5.2 43 6.4 8.2
Consumer price growth 18 19 1.7 1.6
GDP 31 40 2.7 2.3
Mortgage debt as a percentage of household income 101.6 100.6 102.0 102.4
Real household disposable income 1.9 22 . 1.7 1.4
Probability weighting 40 30 25 5
Sensitivity analysis
| =3 0,
ncreas.e. (decrgasg) on ECL provision under 100% £0.5)m £(9.8)m £9.0m £229m
probability weighting
Unsecured £(0.5)m £(9.7)m £8.9m £22.1m
Secured - £(0.17)m £0.1m £0.1m

The sensitivity disclosed above is based on the modelled ECL and the economic adjustment overlay and does

not include the further PD, LGD and operational overlays.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

2. Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued) 'v
As at 29 February 2020
Base Upside Downside
% % %
Unemployment rate 39 39 61
Consumer price growth 20 1.4 2.4
GDP 16 2.1 1.1
Mortgage debt as a percentage of household income 993 96.5 103.4
Real household disposable income ‘ - 15 - 22 0.2
Probability weighting 30 40 30 -

Further explanation of the inputs, assumptions, estimation techniques used at the reporting date in measuring

ECLs are set out at note 13.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
2. . Critical accounting estimates and
_judgements (continued)

Capitalisation and carrying value of intangible
assets

Capitalisation of intangible assets involves an
assessment as to the appropriateness of costs that
meet the qualifying criteria of |AS 38.

Intangible assets are assessed to ensure they
continue to meet the criteria of |AS 38, and for
indicators of impairment, at each balance sheet
date or more frequently where required by changes
in circumstances.

Where impairments are indicated, the carrying
values of fixed assets are written down by the
amount of the impairment and the charge is
recognised in profit or l0ss in the period in which it
occurs. A previously recognised impairment charge
on an intangible asset may be reversed in full or in
part where a change in circumstances leads to a
change in the estimates used to determine its
recoverable amount. The carrying value of the asset
will only be increased to the carrying value at which
it would have been held had the impairment not
been recognised.

Impairments recognised in the period are disclosed
in notes 19 & 20.

Effective interest rate

In calculating the effective interest rate of a
financial instrument the Bank takes into account all
amounts that are integral to the yield of a financial
instrument as well as incremental transaction costs.
In the case of loans and advances to customers
significant judgement is applied in estimating the
effect of various factors, including future customer
transactional and repayment behaviours, on future
cash flows.

Estimates are based on historical experience from
similar product types. Management considers that
the most material judgement is the estimated life of
Credit Card balances which is a maximum of 60
months (2020: 60months).

To the extent that behavioural life differs by +/- 12
months, the value of loans and advances to
customers on the balance sheet would be £7m
(2020: £10m) higher or £8m (2020: £11m) lower
respectively.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

3. Net interest income
Accounting Interestincome and expense in the income statement is determined using the effective interest
policy rate method. This calculation takes into account all amounts that are integral to the yield as

well as incremental transaction costs. The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts the
expected future cash flows over the expected life of the financial instrument to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or liability at initial recognition.

The effective interest rate of a financial asset is calculated on initial recognition and is applied
to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset net of any provision for expected credit losses. If the asset
is no longer credit impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

Interest income calculated using the effective interest method presented in the income
statement includes interest on financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised
cost, at fair value through other comprehensive income and the effective portion of hedge
accounting instruments. [nterest expense presented in the statement of profit or loss includes
financial liabilities measured at amortised cost and the effective portion of hedge accounting
instruments.

Interest income and expense on other financial assets and financial liabilities at FVPL are
presented in fair value {losses) on financia! instruments (see note 7).

Interest expense on lease liabilities are included within in the below categories as appropriate
{see note 33).

2021 2020
£Fm £m
Interest income calculated using the effective interest rate method:
Interest income on financial assets measured at amortised cost 236 294
Interest income on financial assets measured at FVOCI 4 9
Other interest income 1 1
Interest receivable 241 304
Interest expense on customer accounts, deposits and borroWings (45) (96)
Interest expense on subordinated liabilities (1) (1M
Interest expense on derivative liabilities (25) (8)
Interest payable (81) (115)
Net interest income 160 189
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
4, Net fees and commissions income

Accounting
policy

Fees and commissions income

Fees and commissions that are not integral to the effective interest rate calculation primarily
relate to Credit Card and ATM interchange fees, and Insurance introduction commission
receivable from insurance partners. These fees are recognised in line with the satisfaction of
performance obligations. This can either be at a point in time or over time.

Banking income

The Bank earns income on Credit card and ATM interchange fees, and from transactlon based
fees which are charged to the customer’s account. The revenue relating to transactions is
recognised at the point in time when the transaction takes place.

Insurance income
The Bank earns commission income from the sale of insurance policies underwritten by a third

“party. This commission income is recognised as policies are sold, in line with the satisfaction of

performance obligations to the customers.

Contract balances ,

Contract assets relate to the incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer. These
costs are capitalised and deferred over the period to which performance obligations are
satisfied and revenue is earned. Judgement is applied by management when determining what
costs qualify to be capitalised, in particular whether these costs are incremental and whether
they are expected to be recoverable.

Disaggregation of fee and commission income

In the following table, fee and commission income from contracts with custormers in scope of [FRS 15 is
disaggregated by major type of service.

2021 2020

£fm fm
Banking income 41 76
Insurance income : 26 26
Other income 1 2
Total fees and commission income 68 104
Fees payable (9) (10)
Total fees and commission payable , (9) (10)
Net fees and commission income ‘ 59 94

Contract balances

Capitalised costs incurred to obtain contracts in the year were £4m (2020: £5m) and the unamortised balance as
at the reporting date, included within other assets in note 22 was £6m (2020: £6m). These costs relate to
incremental costs of acquiring insurance contracts with customers.

The amount of amortisation recognised in the year relating to capitalised costs to obtain contracts with
customers was £4m (2020: £3m).
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5. Other operating income
Accounting Margin from the sale of Travel Money, representing the difference between the purchase
policy price and the selling price, is recognised on the effective date of the customer transaction.
2021 2020
fm £m
Travel Money income _ 2 40.
Other operating income : 2 40

Travel Money income has reduced in the year due to the closure of Travel Money bureaux due to COVID-19 travel
restrictions.

6. Administrative expenses
2021 2020
£m £m

Staff costs:

Wages and salaries 48 64
Social security costs . 6 6
Pension costs 3 4
Share based payments 3 4
60 78
Other operating costs 138 154
198 232

Staff costs and other operating costs include £21m (2020: £25m) of non-underlying items as described in note 8.

See note 9 for further details on employee arrangements.

7. Gains/(losses) on financial assets and liabilities
2021 2020
Em fm
Realised gains on derecognition‘ K 1
Fair value (losses) on hedge ineffectiveness of derivatives in hedge relationship - (3)

Further detail on the Bank’s hedging policies in provided in note 17.

Finance fair value movements relate to net fair value movements on derivative financial instruments not
designated in a hedging relationship and any hedge ineffectiveness that is expected to amortise over the
remaining life of the hedged items.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
